
 

 
CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF 
COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 
GWŶS I GYFARFOD PWYLLGOR 

 
C Hanagan 
Cyfarwyddwr Materion Cyfathrebu a Phennaeth Dros Dro’r Gwasanaethau 
Llywodraethol 
Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Rhondda Cynon Taf 
Y Pafiliynau Parc Hen Lofa'r Cambrian 
Cwm Clydach, CF40 2XX 
 
Dolen gyswllt: Julia Nicholls - Gwasanaethau Democrataidd (01443 424098)  
 
DYMA WŶS I CHI i gyfarfod hybrid o GYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL RHONDDA 

CYNON TAF sydd i'w gynnal ar DYDD MERCHER, 23AIN TACHWEDD, 2022 am  
5.00 PM. 

 
 

AMSER EITEM TUDALEN(N
AU) 
 

5 
Munud  

ITEM 1. DATGAN BUDDIANT 
 

 

Derbyn datganiadau o fuddiannau personol gan Aelodau yn 
unol â'r Cod Ymddygiad. 

 
1. Mae gofyn i Aelodau ddatgan rhif a phwnc yr eitem y 

mae eu buddiant yn ymwneud ag e a mynegi natur y 
buddiant personol hwnnw; a   

2. Lle bo Aelodau'n ymneilltuo o'r cyfarfod o ganlyniad i 
ddatgelu buddiant sy'n rhagfarnu, rhaid iddyn nhw roi 
gwybod i'r Cadeirydd pan fyddan nhw'n gadael. 

 

5 
Munud  

ITEM 1. COFNODION 
 

5 - 16 

Cadarnhau cofnodion o gyfarfod y Cyngor, a gynhaliwyd ar 19 
Hydref 2022, yn rhai cywir. 

 

5 
Munud  

ITEM 1. CYHOEDDIADAU 
 

 

 LLYWODRAETHU AGORED: 
 

 

10 
Munud  

ITEM 1. DATGANIADAU 
 

 

Yn unol â Rheol 2 o Weithdrefn Llywodraethu Agored 
Cyfarfodydd y Cyngor, derbyn datganiadau gan Arweinydd y 



Cyngor a/neu Gynghorwyr sy'n Aelodau Portffolio o'r 
Cabinet: 
 

20  
Munud  

ITEM 1. CWESTIYNAU GAN YR AELODAU 
 

17 - 24 

Derbyn cwestiynau'r Aelodau yn unol â Rheol 9.2 o 
Weithdrefn y Cyngor.  
 
(Nodwch: Caniateir hyd at 20 munud ar gyfer cwestiynau.) 
 

 RHAGLEN WAITH Y CYNGOR 2022-23 - ER 
GWYBODAETH I AELODAU 

Rhaglen Waith y Cyngor 2022-23 - Er gwybodaeth i Aelodau  

 

 ADRODDIADAU'R SWYDDOGION 
 

 

10 
Munud  

ITEM 1. CRONFA BENSIWN RHONDDA CYNON TAF 
2021/22 – DATGANIAD O GYFRIFON AC 
ADRODDIAD ARCHWILIO ALLANOL 
 

25 - 94 

Derbyn adroddiad y Cyfarwyddwr Cyllid a Gwasanaethau 
Digidol. 
 

15 
Munud  

ITEM 1. ADRODDIAD CANOL BLWYDDYN CYLCH 
RHEOLI’R TRYSORLYS 2022-23 
 

95 - 110 

Derbyn adroddiad y Cyfarwyddwr Cyllid a Gwasanaethau 
Digidol. 
 

45 
Munud  

ITEM 1. RHYBUDD O GYNNIG 
 

111 - 112 

Trafod y Rhybudd o Gynnig isod sydd wedi’i gyflwyno yn 
enwau: 
 
A. Morgan, M. Webber, L. Addiscott, M. D. Ashford, J. 
Barton, D. R. Bevan, J. Bonetto, S. Bradwick, J. Brencher, 
G. Caple, J. Cook, A. Crimmings, S. J. Davies, R. Davis, V. 
Dunn, E. L. Dunning, J. Edwards, J. A. Elliott, L. Ellis, S. 
Emanuel, R. Evans, A. S. Fox, R. Harris, S. Hickman, G. 
Holmes, G. Hopkins, W. Hughes, G. Jones, G. O. Jones, R. 
R. Lewis, W. Lewis, C. Leyshon, M. Maohoub, C. Middle, N. 
H. Morgan, S. Morgans, M. A. Norris, D. Owen-Jones, D. 
Parkin, S. Powderhill, C. Preedy, S. Rees, A. Roberts, J. 
Smith, G. Stacey, L. A. Tomkinson, W. Treeby, J. Turner, G. 
L. Warren, K. Webb, D. Williams, G. E. Williams, R. 
Williams, T. Williams, R. Yeo: 
 
 
Mae Unite yn cynnal yr ymgyrch 'Get Me Home Safely' i 

sicrhau bod trafnidiaeth ar gael i weithwyr yr economi nos a 

gweithwyr sifftiau er mwyn iddyn nhw gyrraedd adref yn 

ddiogel. Mae'r gweithwyr yma'n aml yn ei chael hi'n anodd 

dod o hyd i drafnidiaeth ar ôl canol nos, a thalu amdani.  

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/CY/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/RelatedDocuments/workprogrammes/20222023/CouncilWorkProgramme202223.pdf


Mae modd darllen rhagor am yr ymgyrch Get ME Home Safely | 

Make Our Communities & Workplaces Safer (unitetheunion.org)   

Mae gan Gynghorau rôl allweddol i'w chwarae wrth weithio 

gyda busnesau a phartneriaid cymunedau diogel er mwyn 

sicrhau bod modd i bobl sy'n gweithio ac yn byw yn eu 

cymuned leol gyrraedd adref yn ddiogel. 

Mae'r Cyngor yma'n nodi: 

• Bod gweithwyr mewn amrywiaeth o ddiwydiannau'n 

gweithio sifftiau, yn enwedig lletygarwch, iechyd a 

gofal, manwerthu, glanhau, diogelwch a phorthorion. 

Mae hyn yn aml yn cynnwys gweithio gyda'r nos. 

• Bod nifer o weithwyr, yn enwedig menywod, yn dod 

yn fwy pryderus am eu diogelwch wrth deithio i'r 

gwaith ac yn ôl gyda'r nos. 

• Er ei bod hi'n bosibl bod cyflogwyr yn teimlo bod eu 

dyletswydd gofal o ran staff yn dod i ben wrth i 

weithiwr orffen sifft, mae angen iddyn nhw hefyd 

ystyried teithio adref, yn enwedig yn ystod oriau 

anghymdeithasol. 

• Bod gwybodaeth gan Unite yn dangos bod y gwendid 

o ran gorfodi'r gyfraith mewn perthynas ag 

ymosodiadau rhywiol ar drafnidiaeth gyhoeddus, gan 

gynnwys tynnu llun o dan ddilledyn rhywun arall, yn 

ofnadwy. Deallir mai dim ond 2% o ddioddefwyr yn 

rhoi gwybod am achosion o aflonyddu rhywiol ar 

drafnidiaeth gyhoeddus. 

• Bod ymgyrch Unite the Union, Get Me Home Safely, 

sy'n galw ar bob cyflogwr i gymryd pob cam rhesymol 

i sicrhau bod modd i weithwyr gyrraedd adref yn 

ddiogel gyda'r nos ar ôl gweithio, yn un sydd ei 

hangen yn fawr a dylid ei chefnogi. 

• Bod angen i ragor o staff trafnidiaeth gyhoeddus 

dderbyn hyfforddiant ar sut i nodi a rhoi gwybod am 

achosion o aflonyddu rhywiol a bod angen cymryd 

camau pellach er mwyn gorfodi'r gyfraith o ran 

ymosodiadau ac aflonyddwch rhywiol ar drafnidiaeth 

gyhoeddus. 

 

Bydd y Cyngor yma yn: 

• Cefnogi ymgyrch 'Get Me Home Safely' Unite the 

Union.   

• Ailddatgan ei ymrwymiad i gymryd camau cadarnhaol 

i atal trais yn erbyn menywod a merched a sicrhau 

bod pobl yn teimlo'n ddiogel mewn mannau 

cyhoeddus ledled RhCT. Bydd y Cyngor yma’n 

parhau i fynd ati i gyflawni nodau Strategaeth Trais yn 

erbyn Menywod, Cam-drin yn y Cartref, a Thrais 

https://www.unitetheunion.org/campaigns/get-me-home-safely-campaign/
https://www.unitetheunion.org/campaigns/get-me-home-safely-campaign/


Rhywiol 2022-2026 Llywodraeth Cymru.  

• Parhau i weithio gyda busnesau sydd angen 

trwydded er mwyn gweithredu economi nos diogel yn 

unol ag Amcanion ein Polisi Trwyddedu, gweithio 

gyda deiliaid trwydded, cyflogwyr, yr Heddlu a 

phartneriaid Cymunedau Diogel i sicrhau bod ein 

cymunedau yn lleoedd diogel gyda'r nos. 

• Gweithio gyda’n busnesau a sefydliadau sy'n 

gweithredu gyda'r hwyr ac sy'n cyflogi gweithwyr sifft i 

hyrwyddo diogelwch gweithwyr ac annog deiliaid 

trwydded a chyflogwyr i ystyried trafnidiaeth i staff yn 

rhan annatod o weithredu busnes diogel a 

chynaliadwy. Bydd hyn yn helpu i sicrhau bod 

gweithwyr y sectorau yma'n cael eu gwerthfawrogi. 

Bydd hyn hefyd o fudd mawr o ran diogelwch a lles 

gweithwyr lletygarwch, yn enwedig menywod, nad 

oes modd iddyn nhw fforddio trafnidiaeth ddiogel 

gyda'r nos, na dod o hyd iddi. Bydd trafnidiaeth i staff 

hefyd o fudd i'n cymuned a'r busnesau trwy wella 

mesurau recriwtio a chadw staff. 

• Parhau i weithio gyda Llywodraeth Cymru a 

Chymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol Cymru i ddwyn 

ymlaen ymrwymiad Llywodraeth Cymru i ddiwygio'r 

safonau gofynnol cenedlaethol ar gyfer tacsis a 

cherbydau hurio preifat a sut mae'r fframwaith 

deddfwriaethol yn gweithredu yng Nghymru.  

 
 

  ITEM 1. MATERION BRYS 
 

 

Trafod unrhyw faterion sydd, yn ôl doethineb y Cadeirydd, yn 
faterion brys yng ngoleuni amgylchiadau arbennig. 

 

Cyfarwyddwr Materion Cyfathrebu a Phennaeth Dros Dro’r Gwasanaethau 
Llywodraethol 
 
 
At: Pob Aelod o'r Cyngor  

 
 



 

 

 
PWYLLGOR CYNGOR RHONDDA CYNON TAF 

 CYNGOR 
Cofnodion o gyfarfod hybrid y Cyngor a gynhaliwyd Dydd Mercher, 19 Hydref 2022 am 5.00 pm. 

 
 

Y Cynghorwyr Bwrdeistref Sirol – Roedd y Cynghorwyr canlynol yn bresennol yn Siambr 
y Cyngor:- 

 
Y Cynghorydd G Hughes (Cadeirydd) 

 
  

Y Cynghorydd L Addiscott Y Cynghorydd M Ashford 
Y Cynghorydd J Brencher Y Cynghorydd G Caple 

Y Cynghorydd J Cook Y Cynghorydd A Crimmings 
Y Cynghorydd S J Davies Y Cynghorydd R Davis 
Y Cynghorydd J Edwards Y Cynghorydd E L Dunning 

Y Cynghorydd S Evans Y Cynghorydd S Emanuel 
Y Cynghorydd S.Hickman Y Cynghorydd B Harris 
Y Cynghorydd W Hughes Y Cynghorydd G Holmes 
Y Cynghorydd G O Jones Y Cynghorydd K Johnson 

Y Cynghorydd R Lewis Y Cynghorydd W Jones 
Y Cynghorydd C Leyshon Y Cynghorydd W Lewis 

Y Cynghorydd M Maohoub Y Cynghorydd C Middle 
Y Cynghorydd A Morgan Y Cynghorydd N H Morgan 

Y Cynghorydd S Morgans Y Cynghorydd L A Tomkinson 
Y Cynghorydd S Trask Y Cynghorydd M Webber 

Y Cynghorydd J Turner Y Cynghorydd R Williams 
Y Cynghorydd T Williams Y Cynghorydd R Yeo 

 
Roedd y Cynghorwyr canlynol yn bresennol ar-lein:- 

 
Y Cynghorydd R Bevan Y Cynghorydd P Binning 

Y Cynghorydd J Bonetto Y Cynghorydd S Bradwick 
Y Cynghorydd J Elliott Y Cynghorydd V Dunn 
Y Cynghorydd L Ellis Y Cynghorydd A Ellis 

Y Cynghorydd R Evans Y Cynghorydd D Evans 
Y Cynghorydd D Grehan 

Y Cynghorydd G Jones 
Y Cynghorydd A Fox  

Y Cynghorydd P Evans 
Y Cynghorydd Sera Evans 
Y Cynghorydd C Lisles 

Y Cynghorydd M Norris Y Cynghorydd W Owen 
Y Cynghorydd M Powell Y Cynghorydd D Parkin 

Y Cynghorydd S Rees Y Cynghorydd C Preedy 
Y Cynghorydd A O Rogers Y Cynghorydd A Roberts 

Y Cynghorydd G Stacey Y Cynghorydd J Smith 
Y Cynghorydd  B Stephens 
Y Cynghorydd G E Williams 

Y Cynghorydd G L Warren 
Y Cynghorydd K Webb 
Y Cynghorydd D Wood 

 
 
 
 

Tudalen 5

Agendwm 2



 

Swyddogion oedd yn bresennol 
 

Mr C Bradshaw, Prif Weithredwr 
Mr B Davies, Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaethau Cyllid a Digidol 

Mr C Hanagan, Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a Chyfathrebu 
Mr A Wilkins, Cyfarwyddwr y Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol 

 
 
 
 

34   Croeso ac ymddiheuriadau am fod yn absennol  
 

 

  Croesawodd y Cadeirydd y rheiny a oedd yn bresennol i gyfarfod hybrid y 
Cyngor a daeth ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb i law oddi wrth Gynghorwyr y 
Fwrdeistref Sirol J Barton, H Gronow, G Hopkins, K Morgan, D Owen-Jones, S 
Powderhill, W Treeby a D Williams. 
 
 

 

35   Datgan Buddiant  
 

 

 Yn unol â Chod Ymddygiad y Cyngor, ni wnaethpwyd unrhyw ddatganiadau 
mewn perthynas â'r agenda. 
 

 

36   Cofnodion  
 

 

 PENDERFYNODD y Cyngor gymeradwyo cofnodion y cyfarfod a gynhaliwyd ar 
28 Medi  2022 yn rhai cywir. 
 

 

37   Cyhoeddiadau  
 

 

 Cafodd y cyhoeddiadau canlynol eu gwneud: 
  
Cyhoeddodd y Llywydd fod Cynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol M Rees-Jones wedi 
ymddiswyddo o'i rôl yn Gynghorydd Bwrdeistref Sirol Rhondda Cynon Taf ers y 
cyfarfod diwethaf, a hynny am resymau personol. Croesawodd hefyd yr Aelod 
newydd dros Ynys-y-bwl, Cynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol Paula Evans i'w 
chyfarfod Cyngor Llawn cyntaf. 
 
Gyda thristwch mawr, cyhoeddodd y Cynghorydd A Crimmings fod y cyn-
Gynghorydd John Evans wedi marw ac roedd hi wedi bod i'w angladd yn 
gynharach yn y dydd. Ychwanegodd mai fe oedd yr Aelod Lleol dros Orllewin 
Aberdâr gynt, ac yn aelod o Gyngor Bwrdeistref Cwm Cynon. 
 
Cyhoeddodd y Cynghorydd A Morgan fod y cyn-Gynghorydd Edward Hopkins 
hefyd wedi marw. Fe oedd yr Aelod Lleol dros Lwynypia gynt, a chyn-Faer 
Bwrdeistref Cwm Rhondda. Aeth Arweinydd y Cyngor ati i gynnal munud o 
dawelwch yn y cyfarfod er cof am y ddau gyn-Gynghorydd. 
 
Cafwyd teyrngedau gan Arweinydd y Cyngor i Mr Chris Bradshaw a oedd ar fin 
ymddeol o'i swydd yn Brif Weithredwr. Hwn oedd cyfarfod olaf y Cyngor Llawn i 
Mr Bradshaw, a chafodd ei ganmol am ei 21 mlynedd o wasanaeth i’r Cyngor. 
Cafwyd negeseuon o ddiolch iddo oddi wrth Arweinwyr yr holl Grwpiau, a hynny 
am ei ymroddiad, ei ymrwymiad a'i agwedd gadarnhaol at waith yn ystod ei 
gyfnod gyda'r Cyngor. Croesawodd yr Arweinydd hefyd Mr Paul Mee yn Brif 

 

Tudalen 6



 

Weithredwr newydd. 
 
Cyhoeddodd y Cynghorydd S Bradwick fod Cynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol 
Gareth Jones wedi'i benodi'n Is-Gadeirydd y Gynghrair a dymunodd yn dda iddo 
yn ei rôl newydd. 
 
Talodd y Cynghorydd S Bradwick deyrnged hefyd i un o'i drigolion, Mr Roger 
Davies, sydd wedi bod yn codi sbwriel yn Eglwys Sant Ioan ers dros 30 mlynedd 
a dim ond nawr, oherwydd afiechyd, y mae'n rhoi'r gorau i hyn. Gofynnodd y 
Cynghorydd Bradwick a fyddai modd anfon llythyr oddi wrth y Maer at Mr Davies 
i anrhydeddu ei waith caled a'i ymrwymiad i'r gymuned. 
 
Aeth y Llywydd ati i gynnal munud o dawelwch yn y cyfarfod er cof am y 116 o 
blant a 28 o oedolion a fu farw yn nhrychineb Aber-fan 56 mlynedd yn ôl. 
Arweiniodd Arweinydd y Cyngor y teyrngedau i'r rheiny a fu farw, a nododd 
Dirprwy Arweinydd yr wrthblaid ac Arweinwyr y Grwpiau eraill eu cydymdeimlad 
hefyd i nodi'r pen-blwydd. 
 

38   Datganiadau  
 

 

  Gwnaeth y Dirprwy Arweinydd ddatganiad mewn perthynas â llwyddiant 
a chydnabyddiaeth i Gyngor Rhondda Cynon Taf wrth gadw ei wobr 
'Cyflogwr Aur' Cyfamod y Lluoedd Arfog, a hynny am ei gefnogaeth 
barhaus i gymuned y Lluoedd Arfog a’u teuluoedd. Dywedodd y Dirprwy 
Arweinydd fod Gwobr Aur Cynllun Cydnabod Cyflogwyr y Weinyddiaeth 
Amddiffyn wedi’i hail-ddilysu wrth i’r awdurdod lleol barhau i annog 
cyflogwyr a gweithwyr i gefnogi’r Lluoedd Arfog a’u cymuned ac ysbrydoli 
eraill i wneud yr un peth. Roedd hi wedi cydnabod gwaith Jamie Island, 
Swyddog Cyswllt y Lluoedd Arfog, sydd hefyd yn gweithio ar y cyd ag 
awdurdodau lleol eraill. 

 
 Gwnaeth yr Arweinydd ddatganiad mewn perthynas â sefyllfa ariannol y 

Cyngor a'r gwaith sy'n mynd rhagddo ar gyfer y flwyddyn yma a'r 
flwyddyn nesaf. Cyfeiriodd at gyfarfod a gynhaliodd yn gynharach gydag 
Arweinwyr y Grwpiau, y Cyfarwyddwr Cyllid a'r Dirprwy Arweinydd i 
drafod gwybodaeth yr oedd yn bwriadu ei rhannu â'r holl Aelodau 
heddiw. Fel yr amlinellwyd yn adroddiad y Cynllun Ariannol Tymor 
Canolig diweddar i'r Cyngor Llawn, dywedodd fod yr awdurdod lleol yn 
wynebu gorwariant posibl o £21 miliwn eleni oherwydd pwysau cyflogau, 
dyfarniadau cyflog, pwysau chwyddiant a'r cynnydd o ran costau ynni. 
Mae hyn yn unol ag awdurdodau lleol eraill o faint tebyg. Gallai 
llywodraeth leol yng Nghymru wynebu gorwariant o £257 miliwn. 

 
Dywedodd yr Arweinydd y gallai’r flwyddyn nesaf fod yn gyfnod anodd 
iawn i’r awdurdod lleol a’i bod yn debygol y byddai’r diffyg ariannol o £36 
miliwn a amlinellwyd yn adroddiad y Cynllun Ariannol Tymor Canolig i’r 
Cyngor Llawn rhwng £45 miliwn a £47 miliwn. Dyma ffigwr digynsail, hyd 
yn oed o'i gymharu â'r blynyddoedd o galedi a brofwyd yn flaenorol. 
Roedd yr Arweinydd yn ofni y byddai'r cynllun cyllidol tymor canolig i'w 
gyhoeddi ar 31 Hydref yn golygu toriadau o ran gwariant ac y byddai'r 
Grant Cynnal Refeniw, a ystyriwyd yn wreiddiol yn seiliedig ar y setliad 
dros dro i lywodraeth leol, yn debygol o ostwng. Bydd gostyngiad o 2% 
yn y Grant Cynnal Refeniw (codiad o 1½%) yn ychwanegu tua £9 miliwn 
at y diffyg ariannol. 

 

Tudalen 7



 

 
Dywedodd yr Arweinydd fod tua 80% o gyllideb y Cyngor yn cael ei wario 
ar staff, ac felly mae'n anochel y byddai raid gostwng lefelau staffio ym 
mhob rhan o'r awdurdod lleol. Ychwanegodd fod gyda'r Cyngor 
berthynas waith dda â'r undebau llafur sy'n rhan o drafodaethau ynglŷn 
ag unrhyw newidiadau i wasanaethau. Dywedodd y byddai cyfarfodydd 
gyda chynrychiolydd y gangen leol yn cael eu cynnal i drafod y sefyllfa 
bresennol. Dywedodd yr Arweinydd nad yw'r sefyllfa yma'n unigryw i 
Gyngor RhCT nac i awdurdodau lleol eraill gan y bydd cyrff cyhoeddus 
eraill hefyd yn wynebu'r un anawsterau a phwysau. 

 
Aeth yr Arweinydd ati i atgoffa'r Cyngor fod cyfrifoldeb statudol arno i 
osod cyllideb gytbwys yn gyfreithiol, ac mewn cytundeb â'i Gabinet, y 
bwriad yw parhau i rannu'r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf yn rheolaidd â 
grwpiau trawsbleidiol, y Cabinet a'r Cyngor Llawn. 
 
I gloi, priodolodd yr Arweinydd yr heriau diweddar i lywodraeth y DU, gan 
ddweud bod y troeon pedol parhaus o ran torri trethi a'r 
ymddiswyddiadau diweddar i gyd wedi ychwanegu at yr anhrefn. 
Ychwanegodd y bydd raid dod i benderfyniadau anodd dros y misoedd 
nesaf, ond rhoddodd sicrwydd y bydd yr ymrwymiadau i'r cyhoedd a'r 
addewidion hynny sydd wedi'u nodi ym maniffesto Grŵp y Blaid Lafur yn 
cael eu cyflawni (ac mae gwaith da eisoes wedi bod ar waith) i wella 
bywydau trigolion lleol.  

 
 
 

39   Cwestiynau gan yr Aelodau  
 

 

 1) Cwestiwn gan Gynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol D Parkin i Arweinydd y 
Cyngor – Cynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol A Morgan: 
 
“A all Arweinydd y Cyngor rannu'r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf â ni am roi'r Cyflog 
Byw Gwirioneddol ar waith yn y sector gofal cymdeithasol yn RhCT?” 

 

Ymateb Arweinydd y Cyngor, A Morgan: 

Dywedodd yr Arweinydd fod y broses o gytuno ar brisiau contractau ym maes 
contractau gofal cymdeithasol Gwasanaethau i Oedolion yn mynd rhagddi'n dda. 
Mae cyfraddau wedi’u hadolygu a’u cynyddu ar gyfer darparwyr annibynnol i’w 
galluogi i dalu’r Cyflog Byw Gwirioneddol i staff a chyfradd RhCT o £10 yr awr fel 
y cytunwyd arni gan y Cabinet.  

Ychwanegodd yr Arweinydd mai dim ond pum darparwr allanol o'r 40 darparwr 
sy'n gweithredu yn RhCT sy'n talu'r gyfradd Cyflog Byw Gwirioneddol o £9.90, 
yn hytrach na'r ymrwymiad y mae'r Cyngor wedi gofyn amdano, sef £10 yr awr. 
Ar y cyfan, mae'r darparwyr yma'n sefydliadau cenedlaethol lle caiff strwythurau 
cyflogau mewnol eu pennu. Mae'r Cyngor yn trafod â nhw ac mae o'r farn y 
dylai'r holl ddarparwyr allanol dalu'r Cyflog Byw Gwirioneddol. 

Mewn perthynas â'r Gwasanaethau i Blant, dywedodd yr Arweinydd fod y 
Cyngor yn ymgysylltu â darparwyr gofal preswyl allanol ar hyn o bryd i asesu 
effaith costau gwasanaethau a'r wybodaeth gyfredol am gyflogau a graddfeydd. 
Pwysleisiodd fod unrhyw un sy'n gweithio yn yr awdurdod lleol eisoes yn derbyn 

 

Tudalen 8



 

y Cyflog Byw Gwirioneddol, ynghyd â 10c yr awr yn fwy, sy'n cyfateb i hanner 
miliwn o bunnoedd yn ychwanegol. Dydy'r Cyngor ddim wedi'i achredu'n 
gyflogwr Cyflog Byw Gwirioneddol eto, er bod camau ar waith i gyflawni'r 
achrediad yma yn y dyfodol. 

Nid oedd unrhyw gwestiwn ategol. 

 
2) Cwestiwn gan Gynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol V Dunn i Arweinydd y 
Cyngor – Cynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol A Morgan: 
 
“Mae llywodraeth y DU yn parhau i ddarparu’r cymorth lleiaf posibl wrth i filiynau 
ddechrau teimlo gwir effeithiau’r argyfwng costau byw. Mae'r rhagolygon yn nodi 
cynnydd pellach o ran costau ynni ar gyfer yr hydref. A all yr Arweinydd amlinellu 
pa drafodaethau sy'n cael eu cynnal neu ba fesurau y mae’r Cyngor yn eu 
cymryd i helpu i ddiogelu trigolion?” 

Ymateb Arweinydd y Cyngor, A Morgan: 

Dywedodd yr Arweinydd fod y Cyngor yn gwneud popeth o fewn ei allu i fynd i'r 
afael â'r argyfwng costau byw, er iddo gyfeirio at yr angen i lywodraeth y DU 
ddarparu ymyriadau ariannol angenrheidiol. Roedd hefyd yn falch o glywed bod 
y clo triphlyg ar bensiynau wedi'i gadarnhau yn ddiweddar. 
 
Mynegodd yr Arweinydd ei bryder am deuluoedd ar Gredyd Cynhwysol. 
Ychwanegodd fod y Cyngor wedi cyhoeddi cynllun cymorth â chostau byw 
atodol lleol gwerth £2.89 miliwn yn ddiweddar i roi cymorth pellach i deuluoedd a 
thrigolion sy'n debygol o gael eu heffeithio gan yr argyfwng. Amlinellodd yr 
Arweinydd 4 maes cymorth penodol, megis taliad o £75 i deuluoedd ag un 
plentyn neu fwy o oedran ysgol gorfodol (fesul teulu), pecyn cymorth gwerth 
£50,000 wedi'i ddarparu i fanciau bwyd lleol ac ar gyfer cynlluniau cymorth 
bwyd, taliad o £125 i gefnogi staff y Cyngor ar gyflogau is, megis casglwyr 
sbwriel a chogyddion mewn ysgolion, a chronfa ddewisol gwerth £250,000 i 
drigolion sy'n profi caledi ariannol eithafol o ganlyniad uniongyrchol i'r argyfwng 
costau byw. 
 
Cadarnhaodd yr Arweinydd fod Llywodraeth Cymru wedi cyhoeddi nifer o 
gronfeydd a mesurau cymorth yn ddiweddar, a bydd cyllid yn dod i law'r 
awdurdod lleol maes o law. Bydd mesurau pellach yn cael eu cyhoeddi dros yr 
wythnosau nesaf. Ychwanegodd fod nifer o gamau bach y gall y Cyngor eu 
cymryd, megis darparu teclynnau gwefru ffonau symudol mewn llyfrgelloedd i 
helpu trigolion. 
 
Nid oedd unrhyw gwestiwn ategol. 

 

3) Cwestiwn gan Gynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol L A Tomkinson i'r Aelod 
o'r Cabinet ar faterion Iechyd y Cyhoedd a Chymunedau, Cynghorydd y 
Fwrdeistref Sirol B Harris: 
 
“A wnaiff yr Aelod o'r Cabinet ddatganiad ar waith y Cyngor gyda sefydliadau 
gwirfoddol a'r trydydd sector yn Rhondda Cynon Taf, os gwelwch yn dda?” 

Ymateb gan  Gynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol B Harris: 

Tudalen 9



 

 

Ymatebodd y Cynghorydd Harris fod Adran y Celfyddydau, Diwylliant a'r 
Gwasanaeth Llyfrgelloedd yn cynnwys Theatrau RhCT, Llyfrgelloedd, Cymorth 
IBobUn, Canolfan Dysgu Gydol Oes Gartholwg a Charfan Datblygu'r Gymuned, 
ynghyd â Chanolfannau Cydnerthedd y Gymuned. 

Ychwanegodd y Cynghorydd Harris fod yr Adran yn gwneud llawer o waith ar y 
cyd â sefydliadau'r sectorau gwirfoddol a thrydydd parti, gan gynnwys: 

• Sefydlu Grŵp Llywio Cymorth Cymunedol – cyfarfod i bartneriaid ar gyfer 
grwpiau gwirfoddol a'r  trydydd sector, gan gynnwys Interlink, Cyngor 
Gwirfoddol y Sir, a ddatblygodd o ganlyniad i bandemig COVID-19 i 
sicrhau ymgysylltiad parhaus, ac er mwyn canolbwyntio'n ehangach ar yr 
holl faterion sy'n ymwneud â chymorth i drigolion 

• Canolfannau Cydnerthedd y Gymuned a Rhwydweithiau Cymdogaeth – 
sy'n dod ag ystod o wasanaethau ynghyd, gan gynnwys y rheiny a gaiff 
eu darparu gan y sector cyhoeddus, sefydliadau preifat a gwirfoddol, a 
grwpiau cymunedol.  Mae Canolfannau Cydnerthedd y Gymuned yn 
cefnogi’r 7 rhwydwaith cymdogaeth i ddylanwadu’n weithredol ar 
ddatblygiadau a chefnogi cymunedau a thrigolion 

• Cronfa Trosglwyddo Asedau Cymunedol – sy'n rhoi cymorth i grwpiau a 
sefydliadau lleol trwy'r broses o gymryd cyfrifoldeb dros reoli adeiladau 
neu dir y Cyngor 

• Darpariaeth y gronfa Rhwydweithiau Cymdogaeth a chymorth ariannol 
arall, gan gynnwys y gronfa Cymorth Bwyd, grant O Blaid Pobl Hŷn, 
grant Urddas Mislif, a’r Gronfa Unigrwydd ac Ynysigrwydd Cymdeithasol 

• Cydlynu cymorth i drigolion: Rhif ffôn canolog, e-ffurflen, ceisiadau wedi'u 
trosglwyddo i Gydlynwyr Cymunedol sy'n cyfeirio at y 
gwasanaeth/partner perthnasol am gymorth, gan gynnwys y sector 
gwirfoddol a'r  trydydd sector 

• Cymorth i grwpiau cymunedol gynnal ymgynghoriadau. Mae enghreifftiau 
diweddar yn cynnwys helpu Grŵp Gweithredu Parc Gwledig Cwm 
Clydach i lunio arolwg ar-lein 

• Cydlynu partneriaethau newid yn yr hinsawdd a bwyd, a phartneriaethau 
cymorth i bobl hŷn 

• Gweithio ar y cyd â sefydliadau'r sector gwirfoddol a'r  trydydd sector i 
gyflwyno rhaglen o achlysuron, gweithgareddau a chyrsiau yng 
Nghanolfan Dysgu Gydol Oes Gartholwg 

 

• Cymorth gan sefydliadau'r sector gwirfoddol a'r  trydydd sector ar y cyd â 
RhCT i wella sgiliau staff a datblygu rhaglenni, megis darparu 
cyfleusterau mewn Canolfannau Cydnerthedd y Gymuned, llyfrgelloedd, 
theatrau a Chanolfan Dysgu Gydol Oes Gartholwg er mwyn i  grwpiau'r 
sector gwirfoddol a'r trydydd sector gwrdd a rhannu eu gwaith 

• Mae'r llyfrgelloedd yn gweithio’n rheolaidd ar y cyd â sefydliadau'r sector 
gwirfoddol a'r  trydydd sector i ddarparu mynediad yn rhad ac am ddim i 

Tudalen 10



 

fannau cymunedol i ddatblygu a darparu gwasanaethau i gymunedau 
lleol 

• Mae'r llyfrgelloedd yn creu partneriaethau ar y cyd â  sefydliadau'r 
trydydd sector, megis The Reading Agency a Booktrust Cymru i gyflwyno 
rhaglenni llythrennedd cenedlaethol megis Sialens Ddarllen yr Haf, sy’n 
allweddol i ddatblygu sgiliau darllen pobl ifainc 

Nid oedd unrhyw gwestiwn ategol. 
 
 
4) Cwestiwn gan Gynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol R Evans i Arweinydd y 
Cyngor – Cynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol A Morgan: 
 
“A all Arweinydd y Cyngor rannu'r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am ba gynlluniau 
lliniaru llifogydd y mae disgwyl eu cyflawni eleni?” 

Ymateb Arweinydd y Cyngor, A Morgan: 

Dywedodd yr Arweinydd fod rhaglen bresennol Rheoli Perygl Llifogydd 2022/23 
yn cynnwys 64 o brosiectau a chamau o brosiectau sylweddol. Yn ôl y cyfrifon ar 
hyn o bryd, mae disgwyl buddsoddiad gwerth tua £5 miliwn ar gyfer 2022/23. 

Ychwanegodd fod dros 12 o brosiectau Rheoli Perygl Llifogydd sylweddol wedi'u 
hamserlennu dros nifer o flynyddoedd. Maen nhw'n cael eu datblygu ar hyn o 
bryd ac o ran eu hariannu, maen nhw yng nghamau achos busnes y broses. O 
ran cynlluniau gwaith a gwblhawyd eleni, amlinellodd yr Arweinydd y canlynol: 
cynllun lliniaru llifogydd Treorci – Rhan 1 – atgyweirio cwlfertau, ailadeiladu 
cilfach a gwaith trwsio sgwrio (£600,000), a chynllun lliniaru llifogydd Teras 
Bronallt Uchaf – gwanhau'r llif a rheoli'r basn storio a malurion – (£720,000). 
Mae gwaith hefyd wedi dechrau ar uwchraddio gorsaf bwmpio Glen-bói. Mae 
disgwyl ei gwblhau ym mis Mai 2023 (£1.4 miliwn).  

Cyhoeddodd yr Arweinydd fod 7 cynllun gwaith graddfa fach Cyfoeth Naturiol 
Cymru (CNC)/Llywodraeth Cymru (LlC) gwerth £1 miliwn, a chyllid gwerth 
£440,000 o’r Gronfa Ffyrdd Cydnerth wedi’u sicrhau (cynlluniau draenio'r ffyrdd 
yw’r rhain yn bennaf), yn ogystal â 5 cynllun graddfa fach cyllid craidd gan 
CNC/RhCT gwerth £300,000.  

Cyfeiriodd yr Arweinydd at y bartneriaeth waith agos barhaus rhwng yr 
awdurdod lleol, LlC, CNC a Dŵr Cymru. Maen nhw'n cwrdd yn rheolaidd i drafod 
cynlluniau cyfredol a chynlluniau’r dyfodol, gan ddefnyddio dull ar y cyd. 

 
Nid oedd unrhyw gwestiwn ategol. 
 
 

5) Cwestiwn gan Gynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol D Grehan i Arweinydd y 
Cyngor, Cynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol A Morgan: 
 
“A all yr aelod priodol o’r Cabinet roi gwybod i'r Cyngor a oes unrhyw gynlluniau i 
greu cymunedau hygyrch i bawb drwy weithredu rhaglen i osod cyrbau isel? Ar 
hyn o bryd mae’n anodd iawn i ddefnyddwyr cadeiriau olwyn a sgwteri 
symudedd deithio o un lle i’r llall yn ddiogel mewn nifer fawr o’n pentrefi, gan 
gynnwys fy ward yn Nhonyrefail”. 

Tudalen 11



 

Ymateb Arweinydd y Cyngor, A Morgan: 

Dywedodd y Cynghorydd Morgan fod y Cyngor wedi ymrwymo i wneud y 
priffyrdd yn fwy hygyrch i bob defnyddiwr. Ynghyd â gwelliannau sy’n rhan o 
gynlluniau cynnal a chadw ehangach, yn y ddwy flynedd ariannol ddiwethaf mae 
dros £300,000 wedi’i fuddsoddi mewn cynlluniau penodol i wella mynediad.   

Ychwanegodd yr Arweinydd, er ei bod yn flaenoriaeth uchel, mae maint y dasg 
yn enfawr. Mae miloedd o gyffyrdd ledled y fwrdeistref sirol angen gwelliannau, 
ac felly mae'r gwelliannau hynny wedi'u targedu at y llwybrau prysuraf neu'r rhai 
sy'n darparu'r budd cymunedol mwyaf er mwyn helpu'r nifer fwyaf o bobl.   

Dywedodd yr Arweinydd fod £45,000 yn cael ei gynnwys yn y rhaglen gyfalaf 
graidd bob blwyddyn i wella'r rhaglen briffyrdd (i gynnwys cyrbau isel). 

Dywedodd yr Arweinydd fod cynlluniau gwella mynediad penodol wedi'u cynnal 
yn y ddwy flynedd ariannol ddiwethaf ym Mlaenllechau, Beddau, y Gilfach-goch, 
y Ddraenen-wen, Brynna a'r Groes-faen, gyda chynlluniau pellach wedi'u 
hamserlennu yn Ynys-wen, Pentre'r Eglwys, Llanilltud Faerdref a Blaenrhondda.  
Yn ogystal â hyn, ychwanegodd y Cynghorydd Morgan fod gwelliannau lleol 
hefyd yn cael eu cynnal ar y cyd â Chynghorau Cymuned a LlC, neu drwy gyllid 
arall i gyflawni'r gwelliannau yma.  

Cwestiwn Ategol: 

“Gan fod Cyngor Cymuned Tonyrefail wedi datblygu rhaglen waith ar gyfer 
cyrbau isel, a fydd y Cyngor yn fodlon gweithio ar y cyd ag ef?” 

Ymateb Arweinydd y Cyngor, A Morgan: 

Ymatebodd yr Arweinydd y byddai’r Cyngor yn gwneud hyn. Roedd yn gwybod 
bod y Cynghorydd Grehan a’i gyd-Aelod yn ward Tonyrefail wedi cael 
trafodaethau â swyddogion mewn perthynas â'r ardal, a bod cynllun posibl a allai 
ymgorffori gweithio ar y cyd â'r Cyngor Cymuned yn cael ei drafod mewn 
perthynas â buddsoddiad cyfalaf yn y dyfodol. 

 
Cwestiwn gan Gynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol W Hughes i'r Aelod o'r 
Cabinet ar faterion yr Amgylchedd a Hamdden, Cynghorydd y Fwrdeistref 
Sirol A Crimmings: 
 
“A wnaiff yr Aelod o'r Cabinet wneud datganiad ynghylch buddsoddiad y Cyngor 
mewn cyfleusterau hamdden awyr agored?” 

Ymateb gan Gynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol A Crimmings: 

Dywedodd y Cynghorydd Crimmings fod y Cyngor wedi buddsoddi'n sylweddol i 
wella cyfleusterau hamdden awyr agored dros y blynyddoedd diwethaf. Yr 
enghreifftiau mwyaf amlwg yw sicrhau bod gyda thrigolion Rhondda Cynon Taf 
fynediad at y cyfleusterau athletau yn Ysgol Gyfun Bryncelynnog, Beddau, 
Stadiwm Ron Jones yn Aberdâr, a chaeau chwarae Brenin Siôr V yn 
Nhonypandy/Cwm Clydach gerllaw. Yn ogystal â hyn, mae'r Cyngor wedi 
darparu rhaglen dosbarthiadau ffitrwydd awyr agored mewn nifer o'i gyfleusterau 
hamdden. Roedd y rhain yn gweithredu am nifer o flynyddoedd cyn y pandemig. 
Cawson nhw groeso cynnes pan roedd modd eu hailddechrau ar ôl y cyfnodau 
cloi amrywiol. 

Tudalen 12



 

Ychwanegodd y Cynghorydd Crimmings fod y Cyngor wedi defnyddio cyllid gan 
Chwaraeon Cymru yn ddiweddar i brynu dau rig ymarfer awyr agored symudol. 
Ar hyn o bryd maen nhw ym Mharc Coffa Ynysangharad a Pharc Gwledig Cwm 
Dâr.  Eleni, mae'r Cyngor eisoes wedi darparu dau drac beiciau cydbwysedd 
awyr agored yn Abercynon a Pharc Gwledig Cwm Dâr. Bydd un arall yn cael ei 
ddarparu yn Wattstown, ynghyd ag Ardal Gemau Aml-ddefnydd newydd.  Mae'r 
Cyngor yn ceisio cael cyllid ychwanegol i ehangu'r opsiynau rigiau awyr agored 
a thraciau beiciau cydbwysedd ychwanegol, ond bydd hyn yn dibynnu ar y cyllid 
sydd ar gael a cheisiadau grantiau. 

Dywedodd y Cynghorydd Crimmings fod Strategaeth Chwaraeon a 
Gweithgarwch Corfforol newydd 2022 i 2027 wedi'i gosod ger bron y Cabinet ar 
17 Hydref, i’w hystyried a’i mabwysiadu’n ffurfiol. Bydd yn llywio gwaith arwain a 
rheoli'r gwasanaeth, gan sicrhau'r canlynol: gall barhau i ddarparu ystod 
amrywiol o gyfleoedd chwaraeon a hamdden, bod modd cynnal cyfleusterau dan 
do ac awyr agored o ansawdd da, gall y Cyngor ymateb yn gadarnhaol i 
amgylchiadau masnach heriol sy'n newid yn gyflym, yn ogystal â pharhau i 
ddiwallu anghenion cwsmeriaid a thrigolion RhCT. 

I gloi, ychwanegodd y Cynghorydd Crimmings fod y strategaeth newydd yn nodi 
8 maes allweddol i ganolbwyntio arnyn nhw yn y 5 mlynedd nesaf. Bydd y rhain 
yn cyfrannu'n gadarnhaol at y blaenoriaethau corfforaethol 'Pobl' a 'Lleoedd', er 
enghraifft, sicrhau bod modd i bobl gymryd rhan mewn chwaraeon a 
gweithgarwch corfforol mewn ffordd hygyrch, a'i fod yn gynhwysol. Caiff hyn ei 
gyflawni trwy gynnal darpariaeth cost isel sydd â gwerth uchel a rhoi mynediad i 
drigolion at wybodaeth a gweithgareddau iechyd a lles trwy gynlluniau atgyfeirio 
meddygon teulu, a rhaglenni ymyrraeth iechyd a lles eraill. 

Nid oedd unrhyw gwestiwn ategol. 

 
40   Rhaglen Waith y Cyngor 2022/23 - er gwybodaeth i Aelodau  

 
 

 Cyflwynodd y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth - Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a 
Chyfathrebu Raglen Waith y Cyngor ar gyfer 2022/23, gan  ddweud y byddai 
adroddiad Cyflawniad Corfforaethol drafft 2022/23 yn cael ei rannu â'r Cyngor 
Llawn yn y flwyddyn newydd. Dywedodd hefyd y mae'n bosibl y bydd angen 
gofyn am gyfarfod arbennig o'r Cyngor ym mis Rhagfyr unwaith y bydd manylion 
y setliad llywodraeth leol yn hysbys, fel yr amlinellwyd yn flaenorol gan 
Arweinydd y Cyngor. 
 
Dywedodd y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth y byddai cyfarfod arbennig o'r Cyngor 
am 3.30pm y mis nesaf lle bydd cynrychiolwyr o Fwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Cwm 
Taf Morgannwg yn bresennol. I gloi, adroddwyd bod angen yr ymatebion i'r 
ymgynghoriad ar Arolwg Ffiniau Cymru erbyn 15 Tachwedd. Oherwydd hyn felly, 
bydd ymateb terfynol y Cyngor yn cael ei lunio yn ystod cyfarfod y Pwyllgor 
Trosolwg a Chraffu. Mae gwahoddiad i holl Aelodau'r Cyngor fod yn bresennol. 
 

 

41   Gostyngiadau Treth y Cyngor  
 

 

 Cyflwynodd y Cyfarwyddwr y Gwasanaethau Cyllid a Digidol ei adroddiad mewn 
perthynas â gostyngiadau Treth y Cyngor – Dosbarth Penodedig o Anheddau. 
Dywedodd fod yr adroddiad yn bodloni'r gofyniad i'r Cyngor gadarnhau'n 
flynyddol y defnydd o ostyngiadau ar gyfer dosbarthiadau o anheddau, sef ail 
gartrefi ac eiddo gwag hirdymor. Dywedodd y Cyfarwyddwr nad yw'r Cyngor ar 

 

Tudalen 13



 

hyn o bryd yn dyfarnu gostyngiadau i swm llawn Treth y Cyngor sy'n daladwy 
mewn perthynas ag ail gartrefi. Nid yw ychwaith yn dyfarnu unrhyw ostyngiad 
mewn perthynas ag eiddo gwag y tu hwnt i'r cyfnod eithrio statudol, sef 6 mis. 
 
Cynigiodd y Cyfarwyddwr bod y Cyngor yn parhau â'r trefniadau presennol ar 
gyfer Blwyddyn y Cyngor 2022 i 2023. 
 
Ar ôl trafod yr adroddiad, PENDERFYNWYD cytuno i barhau â pheidio â 
rhoi unrhyw ostyngiad Treth y Cyngor mewn perthynas ag eiddo Dosbarth A, 
B ac C. 
 

42   Penderfyniadau Gweithredol Brys  
 

 

 Yn unol â Rheolau Gweithdrefn Trosolwg a Chraffu 17.2(a), cyflwynodd 
Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a Chyfathrebu 
drosolwg o'r Penderfyniadau Brys a gyflwynwyd gan Bwyllgor y Cabinet a 
Phenderfyniadau Dirprwyedig Swyddog Allweddol Brys a gyflwynwyd y tu allan i 
Bwyllgor y Cabinet yn ystod y cyfnod Mehefin – Medi 2022. 
  
PENDERFYNWYD nodi'r wybodaeth yn yr adroddiad. 
 

 

43   Newid Aelodaeth Pwyllgorau  
 

 

 Newid Aelodaeth Pwyllgorau 
 
Cytunwyd i ystyried yr adroddiadau aelodaeth wedi'u nodi yn eitem 8 ar yr agenda a'r adroddiad 
brys wedi'i nodi yn eitem 11 ar yr agenda ar y pwynt yma. Rhoddodd Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth 
– Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a Chyfathrebu wybod am y newidiadau i gynrychiolaeth y Grŵp 
Llafur ar Bwyllgor y Gronfa Bensiwn a'r Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu, gan ofyn am enwebiadau 
ar gyfer Is-gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu ar gyfer Blwyddyn y Cyngor 2022 i 2023. 
Dywedodd y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth hefyd am y newid i gynrychiolaeth Grŵp Plaid Cymru ar 
y Pwyllgor Llywodraethu ac Archwilio a'r Pwyllgor Gwasanaethau Democrataidd. 
 
Ar ôl trafod yr adroddiad, PENDERFYNWYD nodi y bydd: 
 
1. Cynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol Gareth Jones yn cael ei enwebu yn lle Cynghorydd y 
Fwrdeistref Sirol R Evans ar Bwyllgor y Gronfa Bensiwn 

 
2. Cynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol Martin Ashford yn cael ei enwebu yn lle cyn-Gynghorydd y 
Fwrdeistref Sirol Marcia Rees-Jones ar y Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu  
 
3. Cynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol J Brencher yn cael ei phenodi'n Is-gadeirydd y Pwyllgor 
Trosolwg a Chraffu ar gyfer Blwyddyn y Cyngor 2022 i 2023 
 
4. Cynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol Paula Evans yn cael ei henwebu i'w phenodi i'r Pwyllgor 
Llywodraethu ac Archwilio, a bydd 

 
5. Cynghorydd y Fwrdeistref Sirol Paula Evans yn cael ei henwebu i'w phenodi i'r Pwyllgor 
Gwasanaethau Democrataidd. 
 
 
 

 

 

44   Pwyllgor Safonau – Penodi Aelodau Annibynnol ac Aelodau o'r Cyngor 
Cymuned  

 

Tudalen 14



 

 
 Cyflwynodd Cyfarwyddwr y Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol ei adroddiad mewn 

perthynas â deilliannau'r broses a gynhaliwyd i lenwi lleoedd gwag ar Bwyllgor 
Safonau'r Cyngor, yn benodol Aelod Annibynnol (lleyg) ac aelod sy'n 
cynrychioli'r Cyngor Cymuned (ynghyd ag Aelod wrth gefn). 
  
Dywedodd y Cyfarwyddwr fod  y Panel Penodiadau wedi cwrdd ar 30 Medi 2022 
i gyfweld ar gyfer penodi Aelod Annibynnol o'r Pwyllgor Safonau am gyfnod o 
chwe blynedd ac Aelod o'r Cyngor Cymuned (ac Aelod wrth gefn hefyd) am 
dymor tan yr etholiadau cyffredin nesaf (yn 2027). 
 
Yn dilyn cadarnhad gan Gadeirydd y Panel Penodiadau, PENDERFYNWYD : 
 
1.        Cymeradwyo argymhelliad y Panel Penodiadau i benodi Mrs Helen John 

yn Aelod Annibynnol o'r Pwyllgor Safonau am gyfnod o chwe blynedd 
gan gychwyn ar 20  Hydref 2022. 

 
2.  Cymeradwyo argymhelliad y Panel Penodiadau i benodi'r Cynghorydd 

Cymuned Lynwen Law (Cyngor Cymuned Hirwaun a Phenderyn) yn 
Aelod Cyngor Cymuned o'r Pwyllgor Safonau am dymor tan yr etholiadau 
llywodraeth leol arferol nesaf. 

 
3. Cymeradwyo argymhelliad y Panel Penodiadau i benodi’r Cynghorydd 

Cymuned Carl Thomas (Cyngor Tref Pontypridd) yn Aelod Cyngor 
Cymuned wrth gefn o’r Pwyllgor Safonau am dymor tan yr etholiadau 
llywodraeth leol arferol nesaf. 

 

 

 
 

Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 6.05 pm Y Cynghorydd G Hughes 
Cadeirydd. 

 

Tudalen 15



tudalen wag



 
 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

COUNCIL 
 

23 NOVEMBER 2022 
 

MEMBERS QUESTIONS ON NOTICE 
 
REPORT OF THE SERVICE DIRECTOR, DEMOCRATIC SERVICES & 
COMMUNICATION. 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 To present the order of questions in respect of the Members Questions on Notice, 

following the amendment to the process agreed at the Council AGM 2019.  
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

It is recommended that Members: 
 

2.1 Receive the Questions and any supplementary questions proposed, as in 
accordance with the running order advised upon in 4.3 of the report, which should 
not exceed a 20-minute time period. 
 

3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

3.1 As agreed at the Council AGM on the 15th May, 2019, Members agreed to amend 
Council Procedure Rule 9.2 in respect of Members Questions on Notice. A further 
amendment was made to Council Procedure Rule 9.2 at the Council AGM on the 
26th May 2021 in respect of supplementary questions following expiry of the 20 
minute time duration. Council AGM 2021 

 
4. MEMBERS QUESTION ON NOTICE 
 
4.1 The closing date for receipt of Members Questions on Notice to the Council 

Business Unit for the Council meeting on the 23rd November 2022 was 5pm on 
the 10th November 2022. 

 
4.2 Twenty-seven questions were received and put forward to the Council Ballot held 

on the 14th November 2022, to determine the running order of the questions at 
the Council Meeting.  

 
4.3 The results of the ballot are outlined below:- 
  

Tudalen 17

Agendwm 5

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Council/2019/05/15/Reports/Item7TheCouncilsConstitutionProposedAmendmentsAndAncillaryMatters.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Council/2021/05/26/Reports/AGMItem5Thecouncilsconstitutionproposedamendmentsandancillarymatters.pdf


Number Corresponding Question 

1 
Question from County Borough Councillor L. Addiscott to the 
Leader of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan: 
 
“What impact has the U.K. Government’s economic plans had on energy 
prices, in particular for local authorities?” 

2 Question from County Borough Councillor D. Parkin to the Leader 
of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan: 
 
“What representations are being made to the U.K. Westminster 
Government regarding the funding crisis that local authorities are facing 
in the forthcoming financial year?” 

3 Question from County Borough Councillor K. Morgan to the 
Leader of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan: 
 
“What proactive measures are the council undertaking to ensure drains 
and gullies are clear in order to prevent flooding incidents?” 
 

4 Question from County Borough Councillor J. Smith to the Leader of 
the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan:  
 
“Will the Leader please make a statement on the Council’s budget 
planning ahead of the forecasted lower settlements for Local Authorities 
in the next two financial years?” 

5 Question from County Borough Councillor M. D. Ashford to the 
Cabinet Member for Health and Social Care, County Borough 
Councillor G. Caple: 
 
“What engagement has the Council received from Pontyclun Community 
Council on the future of Café 50+?” 

6 Question from County Borough Councillor S. Rees to the Leader of 
the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan: 
 
“How will the measures in the recent autumn statement affect Welsh local 
authorities with regards to the Barnett formula and the block grant?” 

Tudalen 18



7 Question from County Borough Councillor D. Grehan to the Cabinet 
Member for Prosperity and Development, County Borough 
Councillor M. Norris: 
 
“Yn dilyn y ‘problemau’ gyda’r system gosod cartrefi yn Nhonyrefail yn 
ddiweddar, ac o ystyried anniddigrwydd o bob plaid gyda’r drefn, a 
fyddai’r Cyngor yn teimlo ei bod yn briodol i drefnu sesiwn ar gyfer yr 
holl aelodau i drafod y system a’r polisïau sy’n arwain y 
penderfyniadau”.  
 
“Following the ‘problems’ with the property letting system in Tonyrefail 
recently, and considering the discontent from all parties with this 
arrangement, would the Council consider it appropriate to organise a 
session for all Members to discuss the system and the policies that 
guide the decisions?” 
 

8 Question from County Borough Councillor J. Brencher to the 
Leader of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan: 
 
“Can the Leader provide an update on the Council’s ongoing programme 
of investment in the County’s Highways network?” 

 
9 

Question from County Borough Councillor W. Lewis to the Leader 
of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan: 
 
“How is the Council working with and supporting local food banks through 
the effects of the Cost of Living crisis?” 

10 Question from County Borough Councillor S. Bradwick to the 
Leader of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan:  
 
“Can the Leader provide an update on the progress of any funding bids 
planned or submitted under the U.K. Government’s Shared Prosperity 
Fund?” 

11 Question from County Borough Councillor N. H. Morgan to the 
Cabinet Member for Climate Change and Corporate Services, 
County Borough Councillor T. Leyshon: 
 
“Will the relevant Cabinet Member please make a statement on the 
Council’s biodiversity policy?” 

12 
Question from County Borough Councillor G. E. Williams to the 
Leader of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan:  
 
“How is the Council preparing for further winter weather events following 
the first Weather Warnings of the winter?” 

Tudalen 19



13 
Question from County Borough Councillor J. Bonetto to the Leader 
of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan: 
 
“Can the Leader please make a statement on the Winter Welcome 
Centres in RCT?” 

14 Question from County Borough Councillor R. Williams to the Leader 
of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan: 
 
“In light of the funding shortfall facing councils across Wales for next year, 
please can the Leader provide an update on his discussions with other 
Council Leaders and Welsh Government?” 

 

15 Question from County Borough Councillor M. Powell to the Leader 
of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan: 
 
“Could the Cabinet portfolio holder for highways say what measures or 
proposals the RCT Highways department are considering, to alleviate the 
dire traffic congestion problems that the Pontypridd Town centre has 
been enduring for many, many years please?" 
 

16 Question from County Borough Councillor G. O. Jones to the 
Leader of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan: 
 
“We have heard in recent weeks that the combined impacts of both Brexit 
and the war in Ukraine are having a profound effect on our construction 
industry. What does this mean for the Council and how can we mitigate 
these impacts?” 
 

17 Question from County Borough Councillor L. A. Tomkinson to the 
Cabinet Member for Environment and Leisure, County Borough 
Councillor A. Crimmings: 
 
“Can the Cabinet Member provide an update on the Council’s Leisure 
for Life service as we continue to move away from the COVID-19 
pandemic?” 
 

18 Question from County Borough Councillor M. Maohoub to the 
Cabinet Member for Health and Social Care, County Borough 
Councillor G. Caple: 
 
“Will the Cabinet Member please provide a statement on this year’s Santa 
Appeal and outline how Members can help to support this fantastic 
initiative?” 

 

Tudalen 20



19 Question from County Borough Councillor E. L. Dunning to the 
Cabinet Member for Education, Youth Participation and Welsh 
Language, County Borough Councillor R. Lewis:  
 
“Will the Cabinet Member please make a statement on outreach work 
and detached youth service provision in Rhondda Cynon Taf?” 

 

20 Question from County Borough Councillor J. Edwards to the Leader 
of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan: 
 
“Can the Leader outline what support is available to help RCT residents 
with the cost of living crisis as we enter the winter months?” 

 
21 Question from County Borough Councillor C. Middle to the 

Cabinet Member for Environment, Leisure, County Borough 
Councillor A. Crimmings: 
 
“Can the Cabinet Member please provide an update on the 
Council’s programme to improve outdoor play facilities for 
children?” 
 

22 Question from County Borough Councillor D. Owen-Jones to 
the Leader of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. 
Morgan:  
 
“Can the Leader please provide an update on the progress of 
schemes awarded funding under the Levelling Up fund?” 
 

23 Question from County Borough Councillor D. Wood to the 
Leader of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. 
Morgan: 

 
“With the massive financial and environmental costs involved in 
clearing drains of “FOG”, why doesn’t RCTCBC require, record 
and monitor, the use of grease traps in all food outlets in RCT?” 
 

24 Question from County Borough Councillor J. Cook to the 
Leader of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan: 
 
“Community-run buildings and organisations provide invaluable 
services to our residents, but they are due to suffer immensely from 
the effects of the Cost-of-Living crisis with eye-watering rises in 
their energy bills.  What action can be taken to ease the strain on 
these community assets?” 

Tudalen 21



 
4.4 At the Council meeting a maximum of 20 minutes shall be allowed for Questions 

on Notice. Any questions that are not dealt with in this time limit shall fall. Any 
questions on notice not answered will need to be resubmitted to the Proper Officer 
for the next full Council meeting in accordance with these rules. 

  
 5. CONSULTATION / INVOLVEMENT 
 
5.1 The amendments to the Council Procedure Rule in respect of Members 

Questions was considered and agreed at the Council’s AGM 2019 and AGM 
2021, following consultation with the Constitution Committee. 

 
6. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 The amendment to the Council procedure rule taken forward at the Council AGM, 

allows the opportunity for more Members to ask a question at Council 
 
7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 There are no financial implications aligned to this report. 
 
8. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS OR LEGISLATION CONSIDERED 
 
8.1 The report has been prepared in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 9.2. 
 
9. LINKS TO THE COUNCILS CORPORATE PLAN / OTHER CORPORATE 

PRIORITIES. 
 
9.1 The opportunity for Members to propose questions at Council meetings 

allows Members to receive information which potentially detail the Council 
priorities. It also embraces the Future Generations Act as all work and 

25 Question from County Borough Councillor S. Emanuel to the 
Cabinet Member for Environment and Leisure, County 
Borough Councillor A. Crimmings: 
 
“Can the Cabinet Member provide an update on the development 
of the Council’s 14th 3G pitch facility at the Baglan Field in 
Treherbert?” 

26 Question from County Borough Councillor A. Rogers to the 
Leader of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. 
Morgan: 
 
"How has the Council responded to issues that were highlighted 
regarding management of the COVID pandemic?" 

27 Question from County Borough Councillor S. Morgans to the 
Leader of the Council, County Borough Councillor A. Morgan: 
“Can the Leader outline what measures are being considered to 
help bridge the funding gap that this Council faces in the next 
financial year, including whether the use of reserves is necessary?” 

Tudalen 22



decisions taken by Council seek to improve the social, economic, 
environmental and cultural well-being of the County Borough.  

 
10. CONCLUSION 
 
10.1 Detailing the procedure for Members Questions on Notice assists in 

transparency for both Members and for public engagement. 
 
Other Information:- 
 
Relevant Scrutiny Committee – Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Tudalen 23



LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 

AS AMENDED BY 
 

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 
 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

COUNCIL 
 

23 NOVEMBER 2022 
 

 
REPORT OF THE SERVICE DIRECTOR, DEMOCRATIC SERVICES & 
COMMUNICATION. 
 
 
 
 

Item:  MEMBERS QUESTIONS ON NOTICE 
 

 
 

Background Papers 
 
      
 

 
Council AGM 2019. 
 
Council AGM 2021 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Officer to contact: Emma Wilkins, Council Business Unit 

 

Tudalen 24

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Council/2019/05/15/Reports/Item7TheCouncilsConstitutionProposedAmendmentsAndAncillaryMatters.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Council/2021/05/26/Reports/AGMItem5Thecouncilsconstitutionproposedamendmentsandancillarymatters.pdf


Tudalen 25

Agendwm 6



Tudalen 26



Tudalen 27



Tudalen 28



Tudalen 29



Tudalen 30



Tudalen 31



Tudalen 32



Tudalen 33



Tudalen 34



Tudalen 35



Tudalen 36



Tudalen 37



Tudalen 38



 
 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

COUNCIL  
 

23rd November 2022 

 

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS FOR THE RHONDDA CYNON TAF PENSION 
FUND 2021/22 

 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND DIGITAL SERVICES 
 
AUTHOR: Barrie Davies (01443) 424026 
 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
1.1 This report ensures that Rhondda Cynon Taf CBC, as administering authority, 

complies with the legal requirements relating to the production of a “Statement 
of Accounts” for the financial year ended 31st March 2022 with regard to the 
Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund. 

 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

It is recommended that Members: 
 
(a)  Approve and note the Statement of Accounts for the Rhondda Cynon Taf 

Pension Fund (Appendix 1), and associated Letter of Representation 
(Appendix 2). 

 
(b) Note the outcome of the 7th September 2022 Governance and Audit 

Committee meeting as required by the Local Government Measure 
(paragraph 8.2). 

 
 

3.0 STATUTORY APPROVAL PROCESS 
 

3.1 Section 13 of the Public Audit Wales Act 2004 requires administering authorities 
to prepare accounts for the Pension Funds and for these accounts to be audited 
by the Auditor General for Wales. 

 

Tudalen 39



3.2 The Accounts and Audit (Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2018 removes the 
requirement to include the Pension Fund Statement of Accounts within the 
administering body Statement of Accounts. Regulation 57 of the Local 
Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (as amended) requires 
administering bodies to publish an annual report on the Pension Fund accounts, 
including the Statement of Accounts, by 1st December each year. 

 
 
4.0 IMPACT OF COVID 19 UPON THE STATUTORY APPROVAL PROCESS 

 
4.1 Officers have maintained regular dialogue with Audit Wales with regard to 

timescales for the production and audit of the Statement of Accounts for 

Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund. Finance teams have continued to work 

effectively and the target date was re-set due to the on-going impact of the 

pandemic.   

4.2 The draft Statement of Accounts for Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund was 

subsequently certified by the Director of Finance and Digital Services on the 

29th July 2022.  

 

5.0 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 
 

5.1 The approval of this year’s accounts provides Members with the continued 
assurance that the Council operates within the statutory requirements and 
builds further upon the robust financial management arrangements which the 
Council has in place. 

 

5.2 The 2021/22 Statement of Accounts for the Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund 
is attached at Appendix 1. These accounts are “final” and the external audit 
process has been completed in line with statutory timescales.  
 

6.0 LETTER OF REPRESENTATION 

6.1  It is normal practice for Audit Wales to request that the Responsible Finance 
Officer provides a “Letter of Representation”, which highlights material issues 
relating to the completeness and/or accuracy of the information included in their 
financial statements and could, therefore, influence his audit opinion.  This is to 
ensure that the accounts properly reflect financial standing and is consistent 
with the approach taken by Audit Wales in prior years. 

 

7.0 INTERNATIONAL STANDARD ON AUDITING (ISA) 260 
 

7.1 The External Auditor is required, under ISA260, to report to "those charged with 
governance", relevant matters relating to the audit of the financial statements. 
This is to be provided to those charged with governance, as distinct from 
management, before an opinion is given on the financial statements. 

Tudalen 40



 
7.2 The auditor, in his ISA260 report on the Statement of Accounts of the Rhondda 

Cynon Taf Pension Fund, states there were “initially a few minor misstatements 

in the accounts that have now been corrected by management. These were 

presentational or typographical in nature”. There are no misstatements 

identified in the accounts, which remain uncorrected and there are no other 

matters which are required to be reported. 

 

7.3 Accordingly, Audit Wales intend to issue an unqualified auditor's report on the 

financial statements of Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund. 

 
8.0 LOCAL GOVERNMENT MEASURE REQUIREMENTS 
 
8.1 The Statutory Guidance from the Local Government Measure 2011 was 

published in June 2012 which provided clarity on the role of Audit Committees 
in the approval process of the Statement of Accounts.  The relevant excerpt is 
shown below: 
 

Financial statements 

9.21 Before their approval by the authority, the audit committee should 
consider and comment on the authority’s certified draft financial 
statements. They will want to see to what extent the statements take 
cognisance of audit reports during the year, and changes in 
accounting policy and internal control mechanisms. Audit 
committees may approve the financial statements themselves where 
local authorities have delegated that power to them under regulation 
9 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations (Wales) 2005 (as 
amended).* 

 
* The Statutory Guidance referred to above references regulation 9 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 

(Wales) 2005 (as amended). However, this has now been replaced by regulation 10 of the Accounts and 

Audit Regulations (Wales) 2014. Welsh Government have advised that references to the 2005 regulations 

in subordinate legislation and statutory guidance will be replaced with the 2014 regulation references in 

due course. 

 

8.2 The Council’s Governance and Audit Committee considered the draft Pension 
Fund Accounts on 7th September 2022. The Governance and Audit Committee 
did not raise any issues at this meeting that would prevent Council from 
approving the Pension Fund Statement of Accounts. 

 

9.0  EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS AND SOCIO-ECONOMIC 
DUTY 

  
9.1  The report provides the legal requirements for the approval of the Rhondda 

Cynon Taf Pension Fund’s Statement of Accounts in accordance with the Local 
Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (as amended). As a result, 
there are no equality and diversity or socio-economic duty implications to report.  

 

Tudalen 41



10.0 WELSH LANGUAGE IMPLICATIONS 

10.1    There are no Welsh language implications as a result of the recommendations 
in this report. 

 

11.0  CONSULTATION  
 
11.1  There are no consultation requirements emanating from the recommendations 

set out in the report. 
 

12.0  FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S)  
 
12.1  The financial results / implications within this report have been reported to the 

Pension Fund Committee, Pension Board and to the Investment and 
Administration Advisory Panel. Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund’s financial 
performance will continue to be monitored within quarterly Performance 
Reports during 2022/23.  

 
12.2 There are no additional financial implications as a result of the 

recommendations set out in the report. 
 

13.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS OR LEGISLATION CONSIDERED  
 
13.1  The report ensures the Council complies with the Local Government Pension 

Scheme Regulations 2013 (as amended) and the Public Audit Wales Act 2004, 

and in doing so is in line with the CIPFA Local Government Pension Scheme 

Code of Practice. 

 
14.0 CONCLUSION 

14.1 The certification of the draft Pension Fund Statement of Accounts by 29th July 

2022 demonstrates the continued effective financial management 

arrangements at this Council in respect of its role as administering authority. 

14.2 The completion of the external audit and sign off of the 2021/22 final accounts 

represents further assurance as to the Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund. 

 

 
 

Tudalen 42



Appendix 1  

1 
 

 
 
 
 
Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund 

Statement of Account 
 

2021/22 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Tudalen 43



Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund                                                                                                                                                  Statement of Accounts 2021/22 
 

1 
 

Pension Fund Accounts 
         

Contents Page 
Introduction 2 

 
Statement of Responsibilities for the Pension Fund Accounts 

 
4 

Certificate of the Director of Finance and Digital Services 

 
5 

Fund Account 
 

6 

Net Assets Statement 
 

8 

Notes to the Accounts  
 

9 

Independent Auditor’s Report 
 

25 

Glossary of Terms 
 

29 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 44



Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund                                                                                                                                                  Statement of Accounts 2021/22 
 

2 
 

Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund Accounts 
 

Introduction 
 

The Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund was established with effect from 1st April 1996, 
upon the reorganisation of Local Government in Wales under the Local Government 
Pension Scheme (Local Government Reorganisation in Wales) Regulations, 1995. The 
Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) is open to all employees in Local 
Government apart from teachers, who have their own scheme. It is also open to 
employees of other organisations that have been accepted into the Fund. 
 

The Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund provides pension benefits for employees of 
Rhondda Cynon Taf, Bridgend and Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Councils, together with 
employees from around 50 other bodies. Organisations participating in the Fund include: 
 

• Scheduled bodies, which are local authorities and similar bodies whose staff are 
automatically entitled to be members of the Fund. 

• Admitted bodies, which are other organisations that participate in the Fund under an 
admission agreement between the Fund and the relevant organisation. Admitted 
bodies include voluntary, charitable and similar bodies or private contractors 
undertaking a local authority function following outsourcing to the private sector. 

 
These accounts have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the CIPFA 
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting 2021/22 which is based upon 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as amended for the UK public sector. 
A more detailed Pension Fund Annual Report is available on request from the Director of 
Finance and Digital Services. 
 
The scheme is governed by the Public Service Pensions Act 2013 and administered in 
accordance with the following secondary legislation: 
 

• The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (as amended); 

• The Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions, Savings and 
Amendment) Regulations 2014 (as amended); and 

• The Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) 
Regulations 2016. 

 
 
Fund Administration and Investments 
 

Rhondda Cynon Taf CBC, as administering authority has responsibility for the 
interpretation of pension legislation, the creation and maintenance of records, the 
calculation and payment of benefits and the provision of information to employees, 
employers and other relevant bodies. 
 
The Pension Fund Committee is responsible for the strategic management of the 
Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund in accordance with its Terms of Reference.  
 
The Director of Finance and Digital Services (in their capacity as S151 officer) supported 
by an Investment and Administration Advisory Panel, has delegated responsibility for all 
day to day operational matters.  

Tudalen 45



Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund                                                                                                                                                  Statement of Accounts 2021/22 
 

3 
 

The Pension Fund Investment and Administration Advisory Panel is chaired by the 
Director of Finance and Digital Services and consists of two independent Investment 
Advisors and other Senior Finance Officers. 
 

The Panel meets quarterly to consider both administration and investment issues, to 
determine policy in light of market movements and to question and challenge the 
Investment Managers on their activities and performance.  At the Net Assets Statement 
date there were three Investment Managers and the operator of the Wales Pension 
Partnership (WPP) carrying out the day-to-day investment management of the Fund’s 
assets: 
 

• Baillie Gifford (Global Equities); 

• BlackRock (Passive Low Carbon Equities, Passive Gilts and Infrastructure); 

• CBRE (Property); and 

• Link (Operator of the WPP). 
 

The Pensions Board was established in accordance with the Public Service Pensions Act 
2013 to assist Rhondda Cynon Taf CBC as ‘scheme manager’ in achieving effective and 
efficient governance and administration of the Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund.  
 
 
Wales Pension Partnership (WPP) 
 
On the 15th March 2017 Council approved the establishment of a Joint Governance 

Committee to oversee the pooling of the investments of the eight Local Government 

Pension Scheme (LGPS) funds in Wales. The link to the report can be found here: All 

Wales Pension Fund Investment pooling-joint Governance Committee and Inter Authority 

Agreement.  

 

Link Fund Solutions Ltd (Link) have established an Authorised Contractual Scheme 

(ACS) (a tax efficient UK collective investment vehicle) on behalf of the WPP. The ACS 

continues to develop a range of asset classes to meet the needs of the LGPS funds in 

Wales, to allow them to execute their differing asset allocation strategies. The LGPS 

funds retain full control over strategic asset allocation decisions.  

 
Positive progress has been made by the WPP in the establishment of four sub-funds for 
the collective investing of assets.  

• The prospectus for Global High Alpha Equities, comprising of two mandates with 
differing risk / return characteristics, was approved by the Financial Conduct 
Authority (FCA) in July 2018.  

• The prospectus for the second sub- fund for UK Equities was approved by the FCA 
in September 2019.  

• The third sub-fund relating to Fixed Interest, was approved by the FCA in February 
2020, with the launch of this fund being July 2020.  

• The fourth sub-fund relates to Emerging Market Equities and was approved by the 
FCA in March 2021, with the launch of the fund being October 2021.  

• A procurement exercise took place for private markets and infrastructure during 
September 2021 and February 2022. The approval of the allocator appointments 
was made by the Joint Governance Committee on 23rd March 2022.  

Tudalen 46

https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Council/2017/03/15/Reports/AgendaItem9AllWalesLGPSPoolingGovernance.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Council/2017/03/15/Reports/AgendaItem9AllWalesLGPSPoolingGovernance.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Council/2017/03/15/Reports/AgendaItem9AllWalesLGPSPoolingGovernance.pdf


Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund                                                                                                                                                  Statement of Accounts 2021/22 
 

4 
 

Statement of Responsibilities for the Pension Fund Accounts 
 
Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council’s Responsibilities 
 
The Council is required: 
 

• To make arrangements for the proper administration of the Pension Fund’s 
financial affairs and to ensure one of its Officers has the responsibility for the 
administration of those affairs. In the Council, that Officer is the Director of Finance 
and Digital Services. 

• To manage the Pension Fund’s affairs to ensure economic, efficient and effective 
use of resources and safeguard its assets. 

• To approve the Pension Fund Accounts. 
 

I confirm that these accounts were approved by Council on:  
 

Signature:  ____________________  Date:__________ _____                                               

 
Cllr.  
 
Presiding Officer 
Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council 
The Pavilions, Cambrian Park 
Clydach Vale 
Tonypandy 
CF40 2XX 
 
The Director of Finance and Digital Services’ Responsibilities 
 
The Director is responsible for the preparation of the Pension Fund Accounts which, in 
terms of the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United 
Kingdom, is required to present a true and fair view of the financial position of the Pension 
Fund at the accounting date and its income and expenditure for the year. 
 

In preparing the Pension Fund Accounts, the Director has: 
 

• Selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently. 

• Made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent. 

• Complied with the code. 
 

The Director has also throughout the financial year: 
 

• Maintained proper accounting records that were kept up to date. 

• Taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other 
irregularities. 

 
  

Tudalen 47



Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund                                                                                                                                                  Statement of Accounts 2021/22 
 

5 
 

Certificate of the Director of Finance and Digital Services on the Accounts of 
Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund for 2021/22 
 
I certify that the accounts present a true and fair view of the financial position of 
Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund as at 31st March 2022 and its income and 
expenditure for the year.  
 
 
       
Signature: ______________________________ Date:  _______________ 

 
Barrie Davies 
 
Director of Finance and Digital Services  
Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council 
The Pavilions, Cambrian Park 
Clydach Vale 
Tonypandy 
CF40 2XX 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 48



Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund                                                                                                                                                  Statement of Accounts 2021/22 
 

6 
 

 Fund Account    

     
2020/21     2021/22 

£’000   Note: £’000 £’000 

   Contributions       

 (97,624)  Employer contributions 13.0  (102,178)   

 (29,766)  Member contributions 13.0  (31,121)   

 (127,390)        (133,299) 
   Transfers in from other Pension Funds   

    

 (3,643)  Group Transfers in from other schemes or 
funds 

  

 (6,583)   

 (4,605)  Individual Transfers from other schemes or 
funds   

 (1,673)   

         (8,256) 

 (2,443)  Other income    (2,865)   

         (2,865) 

   Benefits       

110,855  Pensions 
 

112,224   

16,252  Commutation of pensions and lump sum  
 retirement benefits 

 

18,105   

3,875  Lump sum death benefits 
 

3,196   

130,982   13.0    133,525 

   Payments to and on account of leavers       

177  Refunds to members leaving scheme or fund   217   

 (2)  Payments for members joining state scheme or  
fund   

 (1)   

4,702  Individual transfers to other schemes of funds   11,749   

4,877       11,965 

135,859       145,490 

 (2,222)  Net (addition)/withdrawals from dealings with 
members     

1,070 

    
  

    

13,084  Management Expenses 14.0 14,329   

    
  

  14,329 

10,862  Net (additions)/withdrawals Including fund 
management expenses   

  15,399 

   Investment income       

 (14,278)  Dividends from equities    (17,536)   

 (15,785)  Income from bonds   0   

 (39,607)  Dividends from WPP Global Equities    (21,727)   

 (3,992)  Income from WPP UK Credit Fund    (2,201)   

 (7,018)  Income from Pooled Property    (10,682)   

1  Interest on cash deposits    (6)   

 (80,679)        (52,152) 

Tudalen 49



Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund                                                                                                                                                  Statement of Accounts 2021/22 
 

7 
 

 
(1,068,829) 

 (Profits) and losses on disposal of  
 investments and changes in the value of 
 investments 

12.0 20,480   

        20,480 

87  Taxes on income   258   

        258 

 
(1,149,421) 

  
Net Returns on Investments   

   
 (31,414) 

 
(1,138,559) 

 Net (increase)/decrease in net assets  
 available for benefits during the year   

   
 (16,015) 

 
(3,360,022) 

  
Opening Net Assets   

    
(4,498,581) 

 
(4,498,581)  Closing Net Assets      (4,514,596) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 50



Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund                                                                                                                                                  Statement of Accounts 2021/22 
 

8 
 

 

  Net Assets Statement    

     
2020/21     31/03/2022 

£’000   Note: £’000 £’000 

   Investment Assets 7.0     

1,192,224  Equities   862,087   

   Pooled Funds       

1,867,855    WPP Global Equities   1,946,815   

550,961    WPP UK Credit Fund   574,241   

  Other Pooled Investments       

372,929    Passive UK Gilts   523,355   

200,829    Passive Equities   233,295   

282,289    Pooled Property   331,485   

0    Pooled Infrastructure   12,549   

4,467,087       4,483,827 

          

24,964  Cash deposits     26,164 

          

   Other investment balances       

5,232  Investment debtors   3,882   

1,147  Tax recoverable   712   

6,379       4,594 

4,498,430       4,514,585 

   Investment Liabilities       

 (5,023)  Investment creditors      (4,400) 

          

4,493,407  Net Investment Assets     4,510,185 

          

   Current assets       

6,113  Contributions due from employers and 
employees   

6,854   

1,314  Other current assets   600   

7,427       7,454 

   Current Liabilities       

 (2,253)  Current liabilities      (3,043) 

  
 

  

 

  

   Net assets of the scheme available to fund       

4,498,581  benefits at period end     4,514,596 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen 51



Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund                                                                                                                                                  Statement of Accounts 2021/22 
 

9 
 

Notes to the Accounts 

 
1.0   Significant Accounting Policies 
 
1.1   Accruals of Expenditure and Income 
 

Where material, accruals are made for employee and employer contributions, 
investment income, benefits paid, administration costs, investment management 
fees and advisors fees. Transfer values are accounted for on a cash basis, with the 
exception of material group transfers, which are accounted for during the year of 
effective date of transfer or the year in which the actuary values the transfer, if later.  
 

1.2 Investment Valuation of Financial Instruments 
 
In terms of “Fair Value”, all investments have quoted prices in active markets, with 
the exception of Pooled Investment Vehicles managed by the WPP and Pooled 
Property Funds.   
 
Listed securities are valued in accordance with IAS 39 – Financial Instruments, using 
bid prices as at 31st March 2022 obtained from recognised Stock Exchanges.  
 
Sterling valuations of securities denominated in foreign currencies are based on 
closing exchange rates as at 31st March 2022. 
 
Pooled Investment Vehicles managed by the WPP are valued using net asset values 
provided by Link, the WPP operator. These are reported at the closing single price. 
 
Pooled Property Funds are valued by Fund Managers using reliable valuation 
techniques to determine Fair Value. Property valuations are represented by unit 
prices, based on underlying independent professional valuations. No assets require 
significant judgements or assumptions to determine Fair Value. 
 
 

1.3 Acquisition and Disposal Costs 
 
Transaction costs incurred in acquiring or disposing of investments are included as 
part of the purchase cost or netted off against sales proceeds, as appropriate. 
Transaction costs include fees, commissions and duties.  Transaction costs incurred 
during 2021/22 amounted to £1.13m (£1.48m in 2020/21).  
 
In addition to the direct costs disclosed above, indirect costs are incurred through 
the bid-offer spread on investments within pooled investment vehicles. The amount 
of indirect costs is not separately provided to the scheme. 

 
1.4 Taxation 

 
As a registered public service scheme, the Pension Fund is exempt from UK income 
tax and capital gains tax. Overseas investment income incurs withholding tax in the 
country of origin unless exemption is granted. 

Tudalen 52



Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund                                                                                                                                                  Statement of Accounts 2021/22 
 

10 
 

Irrecoverable tax is accounted for as an expense in the Fund Account, with any 
recoverable tax shown as an asset in the Net Assets Statement. 
 
There is a small liability to income tax on refunds of contributions and compounded 
pensions (small pensions converted into lump sums). These amounts are paid to 
HMRC on a quarterly basis. 
 
VAT is recoverable on all activities, so the accounts are shown exclusive of VAT. 
 

1.5 Cash and Cash Equivalents  
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents are sums of money available for immediate use by the 
Pension Fund. Such items are deemed to be cash balances held in the Pension 
Fund’s bank accounts and any overdrawn bank balances. 
 
Short-term investments are deemed to be cash and cash equivalents. These funds 
are invested on a short-term basis by Rhondda Cynon Taf CBC until required to 
meet liabilities, or transfer surplus cash to the Investment Managers for investment.  

 
1.6 Contingent Liabilities 
 

A contingent liability is a possible item of expenditure that arises from past events 
and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence of one or more 
uncertain future events not wholly within the organisation’s control. Such contingent 
liabilities are not reflected in the Net Assets Statement as it may not be probable that 
an outflow of resources will be required, or the amount of the obligation cannot be 
measured reliably. 
 

2.0 Accounting Standards Issued but not Adopted 
  

The Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the 

Code) requires the disclosure of information relating to the expected impact of an 

accounting change that will be required by a new standard that has been issued 

but not yet adopted. In the interim potentially relevant standards include: 

• IFRS 16 Leases (but only for those that have decided to adopt IFRS 16 in the      

2022/23 year). 

• Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018–2020. The annual IFRS 

improvement programme notes four changed standards: 

• IFRS 1 (First-time adoption) – amendment relates to foreign operations of 

acquired subsidiaries transitioning to IFRS 

• IAS 37 (Onerous contracts) – clarifies the intention of the standard 

• IFRS 16 (Leases) – amendment removes a misleading example that is not 

referenced in the Code material 

• IAS 41 (Agriculture) – one of a small number of IFRSs that are only expected to 

apply to pension funds in limited circumstances. 

         It is not anticipated that the above amendments will have a material impact on the 

Pension Fund Statement of Accounts. 

Tudalen 53



Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund                                                                                                                                                  Statement of Accounts 2021/22 
 

11 
 

3.0 Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies 
 
The Fund’s liability is calculated every three years by the appointed actuary. The 
methodology used is in line with accepted guidelines. Assumptions underpinning 
the valuations are agreed with the actuary. The estimate is subject to significant 
variances based on changes to the underlying assumptions. 
 

4.0 Assumptions Made about the Future and other major Sources of Estimation 
Uncertainty 

 
The Pension Fund accounts contain estimated figures based on assumptions made 
taking into account historical experience, current trends and other factors. As 
balances cannot be determined with certainty, actual costs could be materially 
different from the assumptions and estimates. 

 

 
The actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits includes the potential 
impact of the McCloud judgement.  Refer to Note 6 for further details.  

 
 
5.0 Events after the Reporting Date 
 

The audited Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue by the Director of 
Financial and Digital Services, as Chief Finance Officer, on 23rd November 2022. 
Events taking place after this date are not reflected in the financial statements or 
notes. 
 
Where events taking place before this date provide information about conditions 
existing at 31st March 2022, the figures in the financial statements and notes have 
been adjusted in all material respects to reflect the impact of this information.  
 
As a result of the Government’s “mini budget” announcement on 22nd September 

2022, gilt yields rose significantly causing the value of gilts to fall.  This was due in 

large part to greater debt issuance by the Government to fund various spending 

Item Uncertainties Effect if actual results differ 
from assumptions 

Actuarial 
present value of 
promised 
retirement 
benefits 

Estimations of the liability to 
pay pensions depends on a 
number of complex 
judgements relating to the 
discount rate used, the rate 
at which salaries increase, 
changes in mortality rates 
and expected returns on 
pension fund assets. The 
actuary provides the Fund 
with advice regarding the 
assumptions to be used. 

The effects on the net pension 
liability of changes in individual 
assumptions can be measured. 
For instance, an increase in the 
discount rate assumption would 
result in a decrease in the 
pension liability. An increase in 
assumed earnings inflation or 
assumed life expectancy would 
increase the value of the 
liabilities. 

Tudalen 54



Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund                                                                                                                                                  Statement of Accounts 2021/22 
 

12 
 

measures. The Bank of England stepped into the market to buy gilts on a temporary 

basis with the aim of preventing further price fall. 

Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund invests in UK gilts within its passive mandate and 

has therefore experienced a material fall in the value of these assets.   

There are no further events that took place after 31st March 2022 requiring disclosure 
providing information that is relevant to an understanding of the Pension Fund’s 
financial position. 
 
 

6.0 Actuarial Position    
 

The Fund’s Actuary, AON Hewitt carried out an actuarial valuation of the Fund as at 
31st March 2019 in compliance with Regulation 36 of the Local Government Pension 
Scheme (Administration) Regulations 2013. Actuarial valuations take place on a 
triennial basis with a number of key assumptions being made. 
 
The methodology to calculate the Pension Fund liability reflects assumptions and 
estimates depending on a number of complex judgements relating to the discount rate 
used, the rate at which salaries are projected to increase, changes in retirement ages, 
mortality rates and expected return on Pension Fund assets. 
 
Where a valuation reveals a deficiency (or surplus), employer contribution rates are 
adjusted to seek restoration of a 100% funding ratio.  The recovery period for each 
employer is set by the Administering Authority in consultation with the Actuary. 
The funding policy of the Scheme is to ensure that: 
 

• Employer contribution rates are kept as nearly constant as possible and at 
reasonable cost to the employers and taxpayers. 

• Sufficient resources are available to meet all liabilities as they fall due. 

• Employers’ liabilities are managed effectively by seeking regular actuarial advice. 

• Income from investments is maximised within reasonable risk parameters. 
 

The results of the 2016 and 2019 valuations are shown in the table below: 
 

  

 

 

 

 
The aggregate employer future service contribution rate is 19.6% of pensionable 
pay.  To restore the funding ratio to 100% using a recovery period of 19 years the 
aggregate employer contribution rate is calculated to be 21.0%. 
 
Contribution rates payable by each scheme employer will vary depending on their 
particular circumstances. Some employers will also phase in contribution increases 

 31/03/2019 31/03/2016 

£’m £’m 

Funding Target 3,515 3,064 

Market Value of Assets 3,459 2,485 

Funding Deficit 56 579 

Funding Ratio 98% 81% 

Tudalen 55



Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund                                                                                                                                                  Statement of Accounts 2021/22 
 

13 
 

over a maximum period of 3 years. Further details are available in the actuarial 
report. 

 
Contribution rates have been calculated using the Projected Unit Method for most 
employers. The Attained Age Method has been used for some employers who do 
not permit new employees to join the Fund.  The key assumptions made are listed 
in the following table: 

  

In addition to the triennial funding valuation, the Fund’s actuary also undertakes a 
valuation of the Pension Fund liabilities, on an IAS 19 basis, every year using the 
same base data as the funding valuation rolled forward to the current financial year, 
taking account of changes in membership numbers and updating assumptions to the 
current year. This valuation is not carried out on the same basis as that used for 
setting Fund contribution rates and the Fund accounts do not take account of liabilities 
to pay pensions and other benefits in the future. 
 
In order to assess the value of the benefits on this basis, the actuary has updated the 
actuarial assumptions from those used for funding purposes. The actuary has also 
used valued ill health and death benefits in line with IAS 19. 
 
The CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting also requires the 
disclosure of the relationship between the actuarial present value of promised 
retirement benefits and the net assets.   
 
 Value as at 

31/03/2019 
Value as at 
31/03/2016 

£’m £’m 

Fair Value of net assets 3,458.6 2,485.4 

Actuarial present value of promised retirement benefits 4,645.0 3,470.8 

Surplus/(deficit) in the Fund for IAS 26 purposes (1,186.4) (985.4) 

Assumption 2019 Valuation  2016 Valuation 

 % p.a. % p.a. 

Average in service discount rate  4.18% 4.5% 

Average left service discount rate 3.79% 4.5% 

CPI inflation 2.10% 2.0% 

Pensionable Pay increases 3.35% 3.25% 

Post-retirement mortality 
assumption – base table (for 
retirements in normal health) 

S2N heavy tables with 
best-estimate scaling 
factors derived from 
experience analysis 
combined with 
postcode analysis 

S2P tables with best-
estimate scaling factors 
derived from 
experience analysis 

Post-retirement mortality 
assumption – future 
improvements 

CMI 2018 projections 
with Sk=7.5, A=0.0 
and long term 
improvement rate of 
1.5% p.a. for men and 
women 

CMI 2014 core 
projections with long 
term improvement rate  
of 1.5% pa for men and 
women 

Tudalen 56



Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund                                                                                                                                                  Statement of Accounts 2021/22 
 

14 
 

As noted above, the liabilities above are calculated on an IAS 19 basis and therefore 

will differ from the results of the 2019 triennial funding valuation because IAS 19 

stipulates a discount rate rather than a rate which reflects market rates. 

 

McCloud / Sargeant Judgement 

The actuarial present value of the defined benefit obligation at 31st March 2018 

includes an estimated liability in relation to the McCloud / Sargeant judgement of 

£28.7M. The Court of Appeal found that the transitional protection arrangements put 

in place when firefighters’ and judges’ pension schemes were reformed were age 

discriminatory. This has implications for other public sector schemes that were 

reformed around the same time (including the LGPS) and could potentially lead to 

members deemed to be discriminated against being compensated. The Supreme 

Court denied the Government’s application for permission to appeal this judgement 

on 27th June 2019. The matter was referred to Employment Tribunals for remedy 

hearings and the Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local Government 

(MHCLG) ((now department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities) (DLUHC)) 

undertook a consultation on the remedy and confirmed they would be proceeding 

with the key principles as laid out in the consultation. 

 
Equalisation and Indexation of Guaranteed Minimum Pensions (GMPs) 

The actuarial present value of the defined benefit obligation includes an estimated 

liability in relation to the equalisation and indexation of GMPs beyond the 

arrangements already formally in place, which apply to members whose State 

Pension Age (SPA) is between 6th April 2016 and 5th April 2021 inclusive. Those 

arrangements require the LGPS to pay pension increases on GMPs at the full rate 

of CPI for those members, whereas GMP legislation only requires limited price 

increases to be applied. The additional liability included within the table assumes 

those arrangements for fully indexing GMPs will be extended to members whose 

SPA is after 5th April 2021. This has increased the defined benefit obligation in the 

region of 0.1% to 0.2% 

 

 Cost Management Process 
The actuarial present value of the defined benefit obligation does not allow for any 

potential additional liability which may arise from cost management valuations. 

Legislation requires HM Treasury and the Scheme Advisory Board (SAB) to 

undertake periodic valuations to monitor the cost of the LGPS to ensure it remains 

sustainable and affordable. HM Treasury and the Scheme Advisory Board had 

paused their reviews following the McCloud judgement in the Court of Appeal. 

These have now been unpaused and HMT Directions were made over 2021, 

allowing SAB and HMT reviews to proceed. The outcome of the SAB review has 

been published and recommended no changes to the provisions of the scheme.  It 

is expected that the outcome of the HMT review will also recommend no changes. 

The legality of the Government’s decision to include McCloud costs as a member 

cost within the 2016 HMT process is being challenged by a Judicial Review brought 

by trade unions. If the Judicial Review is successful, this may cause the 2016 HMT 

Tudalen 57



Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund                                                                                                                                                  Statement of Accounts 2021/22 
 

15 
 

process to be re-run and could result in changes to benefits or member contributions 

backdated to 1st April 2019. 

 
7.0 Analysis of Investments at Fair Value 
 

  2020/21 2021/22 

  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Equities         

Global 1,192,224   862,087   

    1,192,224   862,087 

Pooled funds         

 WPP Global Equities 1,867,855   1,946,815   

 WPP UK Credit Fund 550,961   574,241   

 Overseas - other 0   0   

    2,418,816   2,521,056 

Other Pooled Investments         

 Pooled UK Gilts 372,929   523,355   

 Pooled Passive Equities 200,829   233,295   

 Pooled Property 282,289   331,485   

 Pooled Infrastructure 0   12,549   

    856,047   1,100,684 

Total long-term 
investments   4,467,087   4,483,827 

 
The Fund has participated in stock lending arrangements through its investments in 

the WPP. The total income received by the WPP from stock lending in 2021/22 is 

£208k. 

All investments held are quoted investments with the exception of property and 
infrastructure, which are valued at Fair Value and no assets reclassified. Carrying 
values of assets held in the Net Assets Statement are the same as the Fair Values 
shown above. 

 
All investments above are deemed to be Financial Instruments designated “Fair Value 
through Profit and Loss”. All investment income, profits/losses on disposals of 
investments, and changes in the value of investments recognised in the Fund 
Account arise from Financial Instruments designated “Fair Value through Profit and 
Loss”, with the exception of interest on cash deposits. Cash deposits are deemed to 
be Financial Instruments designated “Loans and Receivables”.  

 
Quoted equities and cash are classed as fair value hierarchy level 1. Pooled property 
and pooled investments within the WPP are classified as fair value hierarchy level 2. 
Infrastructure is classed as fair value hierarchy level 3, being valued quarterly at NAV, 
prepared by an external expert. Valuations could be affected by material events 
occurring between the date of the financial statement provided and the Pension 
Fund’s own reporting date. Refer to note 17.3 for fair value sensitivity analysis. 

 

Tudalen 58



Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund                                                                                                                                                  Statement of Accounts 2021/22 
 

16 
 

8.0 Fund Manager Asset Allocation 
 
The market values of investments held by the Fund Managers employed by the Fund 
are detailed in the following table: 
 
Fund Manager Market Value Proportion of Fund 

  31/03/2021 31/03/2022 31/03/2021 31/03/2022 

  £’000 £’000 % % 

Baillie Gifford (Equities) 1,197,175 866,979 26.6 19.2 

BlackRock (Passive Low 
Carbon Equities) 

200,880 233,295 4.5 5.2 

BlackRock (Passive Gilts) 372,929 523,355 8.3 11.6 

BlackRock (Infrastructure) 0 12,549 0.0 0.3 

CBRE (Property) 287,956 342,350 6.4 7.6 

Link (Global Growth) 1,501,146 1,540,312 33.4 34.2 

Link (Global Opportunities) 366,709 406,503 8.2 9.0 

Link (UK Credit Fund) 550,961 574,241 12.3 12.7 

Internal 15,651 10,601 0.3 0.2 

 Total 4,493,407 4,510,185 100 100 

 
No single investment accounted for more than 5% of the Fund’s assets. 
 

The market value of investments shown in this table includes short-term investments 
such as cash balances and money deposits, and so differs from the total of long-
term investments only, as shown in note 7.0. 

 

Investment risk is mitigated by employing a number of fund managers to diversify 
manager risk, with mandates covering a variety of assets including equities, bonds 
and property. Managers must maintain a diversified portfolio of investments and 
comply with the LGPS investment regulations, and any additional restrictions within 
their mandates. The underlying investments are further diversified by country and 
industry sector. 
 
Each manager’s performance is monitored quarterly against a target linked to an 
asset allocation benchmark, effectively constraining managers from deviating 
significantly from the intended approach, while still permitting some flexibility to 
enhance returns. 
 
 

9.0 Geographical Spread of the Fund 
 

The Fund Managers invest in shares in a number of countries. Due to the nature of 

the pooled investments, we are unable to provide the geographical spread for assets 

held under this basis. The table below shows the value of stocks and shares held 

by the Fund Managers as at 31st March 2022: 

Tudalen 59



Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund                                                                                                                                                  Statement of Accounts 2021/22 
 

17 
 

 

 

10.0  Contingent Liabilities 
 
There is a contingent liability of £981k (£987k in 2020/21) in respect of refundable 

contributions for leavers who have not yet claimed refunds. 

 

 

11.0   Reconciliation of Investment Asset Valuation 

 

A reconciliation of the opening and closing investment valuations is given below:  

 
 
 

Area £’000 %

UK Equities 327,822     7.30%

Europe 167,330     3.70%

US and Canada 170,353     3.80%

Japan 60,693       1.30%

Pacific 45,901       1.00%

Other International 89,988       2.00%

Passive Low Carbon Pooled Equities 233,295     5.20%

Global Equities (WPP) 1,946,815   43.20%

UK Credit (WPP) 574,241     12.70%

UK Gilts 523,355     11.60%

Property 331,485     7.30%

Infrastructure 12,549       0.30%

Cash & Equivalents 26,358       0.60%

Total 4,510,185 100%

Market 

Value 

01/04/21

Purchases Sales at 

Historic 

Book Cost 

Change in 

Market 

Value

Market 

Value 

31/03/22

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Equities 1,192,224 159,159  (204,566)  (284,729) 862,088

Pooled Global Equities 1,867,855 21,727 0 57,234 1,946,816

Pooled UK Credit 550,961 47,200 0  (23,921) 574,240

Other Pooled UK Gilts 372,929 180,000 0  (29,574) 523,355

Other Pooled Equities 200,829 191 0 32,276 233,296

Other Pooled Property 282,289 44,055  (30,477) 35,616 331,483

Other Pooled Infrastructure 0 12,549 12,549

 4,467,087 464,881  (235,043)  (213,098) 4,483,827

    

Cash Deposits 24,964 233,578 26,164

Investment Debtors 6,379  4,594

Investment Creditors  (5,023)   (4,400)

 Total 4,493,407 20,480 4,510,185

 

 

Tudalen 60



Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund                                                                                                                                                  Statement of Accounts 2021/22 
 

18 
 

     Comparative note for 2020/2021:     

 

 

12.0 Profits and Losses on Investments 

  
2020/21 2021/22 

£’000 £’000 

Profit on sales 169,241 193,160 

Loss on sales  (19,443)  (9,429) 

Net profit / (loss) on sales 149,798 183,731 

Change in market value 919,031  (204,211) 

Net increase/ (decrease) in value 1,068,829  (20,480) 

  
 

13.0 Contributions Receivable and Benefits Payable 

 
Contributions received and benefits paid are shown in the table below: 
Type of 
Body 

Member 
Contributions 

Employer 
Contributions 

Pensions, Lump 
Sums and Death 

Benefits 

2020/21 2021/22 2020/21 2021/22 2020/21 2021/22 

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

 
Administering 

9,671 10,165 33,596 35,146 36,513 38,175 

 Admitted 3,778 3,867 16,852 17,863 16,501 16,367 

 Scheduled 16,317 17,089 47,176 49,169 77,968 78,983 

 Total 29,766 31,121 97,624 102,178 130,982 133,525 

 

Market 

Value 

01/04/20

Purchases Sales at 

Historic 

Book Cost 

Change in 

Market 

Value

Market 

Value 

31/03/21

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Bonds 896,429 199,350  (1,038,606)  (57,173) 0

Equities 722,158 261,116  (117,591) 326,541 1,192,224

Pooled Global Equities 1,270,900 39,607 0 557,348 1,867,855

Pooled UK Credit 0 562,763 0  (11,802) 550,961

Other Pooled UK Gilts 0 405,920 0  (32,991) 372,929

Other Pooled Equities 144,462 192,159  (124,239)  (11,553) 200,829

Other Pooled Property 287,697 20,686  (13,450)  (12,644) 282,289

 3,321,646 1,681,601  (1,293,886) 757,726 4,467,087

    

Cash Deposits 25,423 311,103 24,964

Investment Debtors 14,767  6,379

Investment Creditors  (11,612)   (5,023)

 Total 3,350,224 1,068,829 4,493,407

 

 

Tudalen 61



Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund                                                                                                                                                  Statement of Accounts 2021/22 
 

19 
 

Included in employer contributions are £4,154k of deficit funding contributions 

(£3,663k in 2020/21).  

 

14.0 Management Expenses  
 

The management expenses borne by the Fund in 2021/22 are set out below: 
 

  2020/21 2021/22 

£’000 £’000 

 Administrative Costs 1,870 2,217 

 Investment Management Expenses 10,836 11,724 

 Oversight and Governance Costs 378 388 

 Total 13,084 14,329 

 
Investment management expenses represent 0.26% (0.24% in 2020/21) of the value 
of the Pension Fund as at 31st March 2022. 
 
2021/22 Audit Fees of £40k are included in Oversight and Governance Costs (£39k 
in 2020/21). 
 
The investment management expenses borne by the Fund in 2021/22 are set out 
below:  
 

2021/22 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Total Management 
Fees 

Transaction 
Costs 

Equities 2,456 2,109 347 

Pooled Funds       

   WPP Global Equities 7,472 6,289 1,183 

   WPP UK Credit Fund 636 516 120 

Other Pooled Investments       

   UK Gilts 31 31 0 

   Passive Equities 22 22 0 

   Pooled Property 512 507 5 

  11,129 9,474 1,655 

Custody Fees 595 
  

Total 11,724 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 62



Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund                                                                                                                                                  Statement of Accounts 2021/22 
 

20 
 

 

Comparative Note for 2020/21: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

The Fund incurs no performance related fees.  
 
During 2021/22, the equity portfolio was reduced by £180m, to increase the Fund’s 
investments in Passive Gilts and UK Credit. The Pension Fund committed to invest  
€59.5m into Infrastructure, with the first drawdown of €15.0m taking place in January 
2022. 
 
Included in the management expenses above, is the cost of the Fund’s involvement 
in the WPP collective investment pooling arrangement, as set out below:  
 

 2020/21 2021/22 

£’000 £’000 

WPP Oversight and Governance Costs   

Running Costs 99 135 

WPP Investment Management Expenses   

Fund Managers Fees 5,520 7,328 

Transaction Costs 763 780 

Custody Fees 578 428 

Total 6,960 8,671 

 
The oversight and governance costs are the annual running costs of the Pool, which 
includes the Host Authority costs and other external advisor costs. These costs are 
funded equally by all eight of the Local Authority Pension Funds in Wales. The 
investment management expenses are fees payable to Link Fund Solutions (the 
WPP operator) and include fund manager fees, transaction costs (which also 
includes the operator fee) and custody fees. These costs are based on each Fund’s 
percentage share of the WPP pooled assets and are deducted from the Net Asset 
Value (NAV). 

 

2020/21 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Total Management 
Fees 

Transaction 
Costs 

Bonds 433 433 0 

Equities 2,889 2,183 706 

Pooled Funds       

   WPP Global Equities 6,011 4,729 1,282 

   WPP UK Credit Fund 291 291 0 

Other Pooled Investments       

   UK Gilts 13 13 0 

   Passive Equities 11 11 0 

   Pooled Property 455 441 14 

  10,103 8,101 2,002 

Custody Fees 733   
Total 10,836   

Tudalen 63



Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund                                                                                                                                                  Statement of Accounts 2021/22 
 

21 
 

15.0 Transactions with Related Parties 
 

In the course of fulfilling its role as Administering Authority to the Fund, Rhondda 
Cynon Taf CBC provided services to the Fund for which it charged £1.6m (£1.4m in 
2020/21). These costs are mainly in respect of those staff employed in ensuring that 
the pension service is delivered. 
 
At the year-end, contributions outstanding from the Employing Bodies in the Fund 
amounted to £6.9m (£6.1m in 2020/21), of which £5.2m related to employer 
contributions and £1.7m to employee contributions. 
 
There are members of the Pension Fund Investment and Administration Advisory 
Panel, the Pensions Board and the Pension Fund Committee who are also members 
of the Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund. 
 
The administration of the Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund is a function of full 
Council, with responsibility for day to day decisions being delegated to the Director 
of Finance and Digital Services. As such, the post holders are required to declare 
any interests with related parties. The disclosure can be found in the Statement of 
Accounts of Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council. 
 
The Committee Members and Senior Officers that advise the Committee are 
required to declare their interest at each meeting.  
 
Officer remuneration and Members allowances can be found in the Statement of 
Accounts of Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council. 
 
 
 

16.0 Membership of the Fund 
 
Fund membership at 31st March is as follows: 
 
  2021 2022 

 Active Employers 51 52 

 Contributors 23,931 24,121 

 Pensioners 17,728 18,220 

 Dependants 2,786 2,899 

 Deferred Beneficiaries 28,868 29,548 

 
 
17.0 Nature and Extent of Risks Arising From Financial Instruments 

 
A financial instrument is defined as any contract that gives rise to a financial asset 
of one entity and a financial liability (or equity instrument) of another entity.  There 
are three main ways in which the Pension Fund is exposed to risk from financial 
instruments: 

Tudalen 64



Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund                                                                                                                                                  Statement of Accounts 2021/22 
 

22 
 

 

• Credit Risk; 

• Liquidity Risk; and 

• Market Risk. 
 
The overall objective is to minimise the risk of a reduction in the value of the Fund, 
and to maximise the opportunity for gains within reasonable risk parameters. 
 
The Funding Strategy Statement identifies key risks to the Pension Fund together 
with the countermeasures undertaken to mitigate the risks. 
 
 

17.1 Credit Risk  

 
Credit risk is the possibility that a counterparty will fail to discharge its obligation to 
the Pension Fund, causing a financial loss.  Counterparties considered are banks 
and financial institutions with whom investments are placed, employers within the 
Fund and Investment Managers. The risk of counterparties failing to discharge 
obligations is managed in a number of ways: 
 

• Counterparties for cash investments made by the Administering Authority must 
meet the strict credit criteria set out in the Rhondda Cynon Taf CBC Treasury 
Management Strategy. 

• Participating employers may be required to provide a bond to cover the risk to 
the Fund should they be unable to meet their pension contribution obligations.  

• Investment Managers manage funds that are held in the name of the Pension 
Fund, not in the name of the Investment Managers.  In the event of the 
Investment Manager being unable to fulfil their obligations the Fund’s 
investments will not be considered part of their asset portfolio. 

 
The Pension Fund has had no experience of counterparty default in the last five 
years.  Cash deposits held by the Administering Authority for the Pension Fund as 
at 31st March 2022 amounted to £7.33m with the institution shown in the table below: 
 

 Institution Balance at 31/03/22    

£’000 

Maturity Date 

Debt Management Office 7,330 01/04/2022 

 Total  7,330   

 
 

17.2 Liquidity Risk 
 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Pension Fund will not be able to meet its financial 
obligations as they fall due.  This risk is managed by: 
 

• Maintaining a robust cash flow monitoring and forecasting model. 

• Ensuring that the Pension Fund has access to cash in the short and medium-
term to pay pensions by managing cash flow from money-market investments. 

Tudalen 65



Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund                                                                                                                                                  Statement of Accounts 2021/22 
 

23 
 

• Taking actuarial advice to set employer contribution rates at triennial valuations 
in order to meet the long-term funding requirements to pay pensions and other 
commitments. 

 
The Administering Authority has immediate access to internally managed Pension 
Fund cash balances held with its own bank, Barclays.  The Authority also invests 
Pension Fund cash in short-term deposits with the Debt Management Office or other 
UK public bodies for periods normally less than 3 months. 

 
 

17.3 Market Risk  

 
Market risk is the risk of a loss in the value of investment assets from movements in 
investment markets e.g. asset prices, interest rates and currency exchange rates.  
This risk is managed by ensuring that the Fund invests in a broad range of assets 
diversified by Investment Manager, asset class and geographical region.  
 
Following analysis of historic data, Pensions & Investment Research Consultants 
(PIRC), the Fund’s pension performance analytics company, has provided a view of 
potential market movements for the 2021/22 financial year. The possible impact of 
movements in each asset type is shown in the following table: 
 
Asset type 31/03/22 

Value 
Change 

% 
Value on 
increase 

Value on 
decrease 

 
£’000   £’000 £’000  

Equities 862,087 15.19 993,038 731,136 
 

Pooled Funds - Global 
Equity  1,946,815 15.19 2,242,536 1,651,094 

 

Pooled Funds UK Credit 574,241 6.43 611,165 537,317  

Other Pooled  - Gilts 523,355 6.43 557,007 489,703  

Other Pooled - Passive 
Equities 233,295 15.19 268,733 197,857 

 

Other Pooled Property 331,485 3.43 342,855 320,115 
 

Infrastructure 12,549 3.60 13,001 12,097  

Cash 26,359 0.78 26,565 26,153  

 
PIRC also advised that the potential market movement for the Fund as a whole, 
could be 10.02%. The possible impact is shown below: 
 

  

31/03/2022 Change Value on 
increase 

Value on 
decrease Value % 

£’000   £’000 £’000 

Fund Asset Total 4,510,186 10.02 4,962,107 4,058,265 

 
The Fund’s interest rate risk is monitored regularly with the advice of the 
Administering Authority’s treasury advisors.  Interest rate changes can affect Fund 
income and asset values.  
 

Tudalen 66



Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund                                                                                                                                                  Statement of Accounts 2021/22 
 

24 
 

Assuming that all other variables, particularly exchange rates, remain unchanged, a 
movement in interest rates of 1% for the 2021/22 financial year would have the 
following effect: 
 

Asset type 31/03/22 
Value 

Value on 
increase 

Value on 
decrease 

£’000 £’000 £’000 

Pooled Funds UK Credit 574,241 579,983 568,499 

Other Pooled  - Gilts 523,355 528,589 518,121 

Cash deposits & balances 26,359 26,623 26,095 

 Total 1,123,955 1,135,195 1,112,715 

 
 
Currency risk is the risk to income and investment asset values from changes in 

exchange rates.  The Fund is exposed to this risk from non-sterling denominated 

investments in a range of assets. 

A movement in currency exchange rates of 7.3% would have the following effect: 
 

Asset type 

31/03/22 
Value 

Value on 
increase 

Value on 
decrease 

£’000 £’000 £’000 

Overseas Equities 534,264 573,265 495,263 

Overseas Pooled Property 14 15 13 

Total 534,278 573,280 495,276 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Tudalen 67



Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund                                                                                                                                                  Statement of Accounts 2021/22 
 

25 
 

The independent auditor’s report of the Auditor General for Wales to the 
members of Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council as administering 
authority for Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund 
 
Report on the audit of the financial statements 
 
Opinion 

 

I have audited the financial statements of Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund for the year 

ended 31 March 2022 under the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004. Rhondda Cynon Taf 

Pension Fund financial statements comprise the fund account, the net assets statement 

and the related notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The 

financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law 

and international accounting standards as interpreted and adapted by the Code of 

Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2022. 

 
 
In my opinion the financial statements:  
 

• give a true and fair view of the financial transactions of the pension fund during the 
year ended 31 March 2022, and of the amount and disposition at that date of its 
assets and liabilities; 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with legislative requirements and the 
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2022.  

  

Basis for opinion 

I conducted my audit in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on 
Auditing in the UK (ISAs (UK)) and Practice Note 10 ‘Audit of Financial Statements of 
Public Sector Entities in the United Kingdom’. My responsibilities under those standards 
are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial 
statements section of my report. I am independent of the pension fund in accordance with 
the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit of the financial statements in the 
UK including the Financial Reporting Council’s Ethical Standard, and I have fulfilled my 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. I believe that the 
audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
opinion. 

 

Conclusions relating to going concern 

In auditing the financial statements, I have concluded that the use of the going concern 
basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. 

Based on the work I have performed, I have not identified any material uncertainties 
relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt 
on the pension fund’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting 
for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised 
for issue. 

Tudalen 68



Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund                                                                                                                                                  Statement of Accounts 2021/22 
 

26 
 

My responsibilities and the responsibilities of the responsible financial officer with respect 
to going concern are described in the relevant sections of this report. 

Other information 

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report other than 
the financial statements and my auditor’s report thereon. The Responsible Financial 
Officer is responsible for the other information contained within the annual report. My 
opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to 
the extent otherwise explicitly stated in my report, I do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon. My responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial 
statements or knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If I identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material 
misstatements, I am required to determine whether this gives rise to a material 
misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work I have 
performed, I conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, I am 
required to report that fact. 

I have nothing to report in this regard. 

Report on other requirements 

Opinion on other matters 

In my opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of my audit: 

• the information contained in the annual report for the financial year for which the 
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements and the 
annual report has been prepared in accordance with the Local Government Pension 
Scheme Regulations 2013.  

 

Matters on which I report by exception 
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the pension fund and its environment 
obtained in the course of the audit, I have not identified material misstatements in the 
pension fund accounts. 
I have nothing to report in respect of the following matters, which I report to you, if, in my 
opinion: 

• adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for my audit 
have not been received from branches not visited by my team; 

• the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; 
or 

• I have not received all the information and explanations I require for my audit. 

 

Responsibilities 

Responsibilities of the responsible financial officer for the financial statements 
As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities for the financial statements 
set out on pages 4 to 5, the responsible financial officer is responsible for the preparation 
of the financial statements, which give a true and fair view, and for such internal control 
as the responsible financial officer determines is necessary to enable the preparation of 

Tudalen 69



Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund                                                                                                                                                  Statement of Accounts 2021/22 
 

27 
 

financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
In preparing the financial statements, the responsible financial officer is responsible for 
assessing the pension fund’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless deemed inappropriate.  
 
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
 
My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level 
of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis 
of these financial statements. 
 

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. 

I design procedures in line with my responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material 

misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud.  

My procedures included the following: 

• Enquiring of management, and those charged with governance, including 
obtaining and reviewing supporting documentation relating to Rhondda Cynon Taf 
Pension Fund’s policies and procedures concerned with:  
▪ identifying, evaluating and complying with laws and regulations and whether 

they were aware of any instances of non-compliance; 
▪ detecting and responding to the risks of fraud and whether they have 

knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud; and 
▪ the internal controls established to mitigate risks related to fraud or non-

compliance with laws and regulations. 

• Considering as an audit team how and where fraud might occur in the financial 
statements and any potential indicators of fraud. 

• Obtaining an understanding of Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund’s framework of 
authority as well as other legal and regulatory frameworks that Rhondda Cynon 
Taf Pension Fund operates in, focusing on those laws and regulations that had a 
direct effect on the financial statements or that had a fundamental effect on the 
operations of Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund;  

In addition to the above, my procedures to respond to identified risks included the 

following: 

• reviewing the financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting 
documentation to assess compliance with relevant laws and regulations discussed 
above; 

• reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance and the 
administering authority; 

• in addressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls, testing 
the appropriateness of journal entries and other adjustments; assessing whether 

Tudalen 70



Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund                                                                                                                                                  Statement of Accounts 2021/22 
 

28 
 

the judgements made in making accounting estimates are indicative of a potential 
bias; and evaluating the business rationale of any significant transactions that are 
unusual or outside the normal course of business; and 

I also communicated relevant identified laws and regulations and potential fraud risks to 
all audit team and remained alert to any indications of fraud or non-compliance with laws 
and regulations throughout the audit. 

The extent to which my procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, 

is affected by the inherent difficulty in detecting irregularities, the effectiveness of the 

Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund’s controls, and the nature, timing and extent of the 

audit procedures performed.  

A further description of the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial 
statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council's website 
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of my auditor’s report. 

 

 

Certificate of completion of audit 

I certify that I have completed the audit of the accounts of Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension 

Fund in accordance with the requirements of the Public Audit (Wales) Act 2004 and the 

Auditor General for Wales’ Code of Audit Practice. 

 

 
 
 
 
      
Adrian Crompton      24 Cathedral Road 
For and on behalf of the Auditor General for Wales Cardiff 
(Date)        CF11 9LJ 
 

 
 
 
 
 

The maintenance and integrity of Rhondda Cynon Taf’s website is the responsibility of 
the Accounting Officer; the work carried out by auditors does not involve consideration of 
these matters and accordingly auditors accept no responsibility for any changes that may 
have occurred to the financial statements since they were initially presented on the 
website. 

 
 
 

Tudalen 71

https://www.frc.org.uk/auditors/audit-assurance/auditor-s-responsibilities-for-the-audit-of-the-fi/description-of-the-auditor%e2%80%99s-responsibilities-for


Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund                                                                                                                                                  Statement of Accounts 2021/22 
 

29 
 

Glossary of Terms 
 

Accrual 
An accrual is a sum shown in the accounts representing income or expenditure 
relating to the accounting period, which had not actually been received or paid 
as at the date of the net asset statement. 
 

Active 
Active management is the traditional form of investment management involving 
a series of individual investment decisions that seek to maximise returns by 
exploiting price inefficiencies i.e. ‘beat the market’. 
 

Actuary 
An actuary is an individual or organisation that calculates insurance premiums 
and liabilities and pension obligations. 
 

Actuarial Gains and Losses 
 For a defined benefit pension scheme, the changes in actuarial deficits or 

surpluses that arise because events have not coincided with the actuarial 
assumptions made for the last valuation, or the actuarial assumptions have 
changed. 

 
Admitted Body 

An organisation, whose staff can become members of the Fund by virtue of an 
admission agreement made between the Council and the organisation. It enables 
contractors who take on the Council’s services with employees transferring, to 
offer those staff continued membership of the Fund. 
 

Asset Allocation 
 Apportionment of investment funds among categories of assets, such as Bonds, 

Equities, Cash and Property. Asset allocation affects both risk and return.  
 

Attained Age Method  
An Actuarial method of calculating a contribution rate to the Pension Fund. It 
calculates the present value of the benefits estimated to accrue to members 
over their expected remaining membership, expressed as a percentage of their 
expected future pensionable pay. 
 

Audit 
An audit is an independent examination of activities. 

 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 Sums of money available for immediate use and deposits with financial 

institutions repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. 
 

Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) 
CIPFA is responsible for issuing financial guidance to public bodies. 
 
 
 

  Contingent Liabilities  

Tudalen 72



Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund                                                                                                                                                  Statement of Accounts 2021/22 
 

30 
 

These are amounts potentially due to individuals or organisations which may 
arise in the future but which at this time cannot be determined accurately and for 
which provision has not been made in the Pension Fund’s accounts. 
 

Creditor 
A creditor is an organisation/individual owed money by the Pension Fund at the 
end of the financial year for goods/services received.  
 

Custodian 
Bank or other financial institution that keeps custody of stock certificates and 
other assets of a client, collects dividends and tax refunds due and settles any 
purchases and sales.  
 

Current Assets 
These are short-term assets that are available for the Pension Fund to use in the 
following accounting period. 
 

Current Liabilities 
These are short-term liabilities that are due for payment by the Pension Fund in 
the following accounting period. 
 

Debtor 
A debtor is an organisation/individual who owes the Pension Fund money at the 
end of the financial year for goods/services received.  
 

Debt Management Office (DMO) 
The DMO is an Executive Agency of Her Majesty’s Treasury. Its responsibilities 
include debt and cash management for the UK Government, lending to Local 
Authorities and managing certain public sector funds. 
 

Defined Benefit Scheme (Pensions) 
 This is a pension or other retirement benefit scheme other than a defined benefit 

contribution scheme. Usually, the scheme rules define the benefits independently 
of the contributions payable and the benefits are not directly related to the 
investments of the scheme. The scheme may be funded or unfunded (including 
notionally funded). 

 
Defined Contribution Scheme (Pensions) 

A Defined Contribution Scheme is a pension or other retirement benefit scheme 
into which an employer pays regular contributions as an amount or as a 
percentage of pay and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further 
contributions if the scheme does not have sufficient assets to pay all employee 
benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. 
 

Derivatives 
A derivative instrument is a contract whose value is based on the performance 
of an underlying financial asset, index, or other investment. 
 
 
 

Employer Contribution Rates 

Tudalen 73



Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund                                                                                                                                                  Statement of Accounts 2021/22 
 

31 
 

 The percentage of the salary of employees that employers pay as a contribution 
towards the employees’ pension. 

 
Equities 
 Ordinary shares in UK and overseas companies traded on a recognised stock 

exchange. Shareholders have an interest in the profits of the company and may 
normally vote at shareholders’ meetings.  
 

Fair Value Hierarchy 
Level 1 – Assets and liabilities at level 1 are those where fair values are derived 
from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
Level 2 – Assets and liabilities at level 2 are those where quoted market prices 
are not available. 
Level 3 – Inputs not based on observable market data.  The values of investment 
in private equity are based on valuations provided by the general partners to the 
private equity funds. If the company’s year-end does not coincide with the 
Pension Fund’s year end, the valuation is updated with regard to the calls and 
distributions made between the Private Equity Fund’s audited account date and 
the Pension Fund’s year end.  
 

Financial Assets 
 Financial assets are cash, equity instruments within another entity e.g. shares, 

or a contractual right to receive cash or another asset from another entity e.g. 
debtors, or exchange financial assets or financial liabilities under favourable 
conditions e.g. derivatives. 
 

Financial Year 
This is the accounting period. For local authorities it starts on 1st April and finishes 
on 31st March of the following year. 
 

Fixed Interest Securities/Bonds 
 Investments, especially in government stocks, with a guaranteed rate of interest. 

Conventional bonds have fixed rates, whilst Index Linked vary with inflation. They 
represent loans repayable at a stated future date and which can be traded on a 
stock exchange in the meantime. 
 

Fund of Funds 
 A pooled fund that invests in other pooled funds. They are able to move money 

between the best funds in the industry and thereby aim to lower stakeholder risk 
with greater diversification than is offered by a single fund. 
 

GMP 
 Guaranteed Minimum Pension. 
 
Impairment 

Impairment occurs when the value of a long-term asset falls below the value it is 
currently held at in the Fund Account. 
 

International Accounting Standard (IAS) 
Financial Regulations to be followed as set by the International Accounting 
Standards Board (IASB). 

Tudalen 74



Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund                                                                                                                                                  Statement of Accounts 2021/22 
 

32 
 

 

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) 
International Financial Reporting Standards are produced by the IASB 
(International Accounting Standards Board) with the aim of ensuring consistency 
within the countries adopting the standards. 
 

Liability 
A liability is an obligation to transfer economic benefits as a result of past 
transactions or events. 
 

Net Asset Value (NAV) 
The net asset value (NAV) represents the net value of an entity and is calculated 

as the total value of the entity's asset minus the total value of its liabilities. 

Passive Management 
Passive management is a low-cost alternative where managers normally hold 
stocks in line with a published index, such as the FTSE All-Share, not seeking to 
outperform but to keep pace with the index being tracked.  

Pooled Funds 
 Pooled investment vehicles issue units to a range of investors. Unit’s prices move 

in response to changes in the value of the underlying portfolio and investors do 
not own directly the assets in the fund. The main types are: unit trusts, open-
ended investment companies (OEICSs), insurance linked vehicles and 
investment trusts.  

 
Portfolio 

A collective term for all the investments held in a fund, market or sector. A 
segregated portfolio is a portfolio of investments of a specific type held directly in 
the name of the investor e.g. Global Bonds, or a specific market e.g. UK Equities, 
Far East Equities. 
 

Prior Year Adjustment 
Material adjustments applicable to prior years arising from changes in accounting 
policies or from the correction of material errors. 
 

Provision 
A provision is an obligation to transfer economic benefits as a result of past 
events where a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation, but the amount 
or timing of which cannot yet be determined accurately. 
 

Related Party 
A related party exists where there is control or influence by one party over 
another. 
 

Return 
 The total gain from holding an investment, including both income and any 

increase or decrease in market value. Returns over periods longer than a year 
are usually expressed as an average annual return.  

 
Scheduled Bodies 

Tudalen 75



Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund                                                                                                                                                  Statement of Accounts 2021/22 
 

33 
 

An organisation that has the right to become a member of the Local Government 
Pension Scheme under the scheme regulations. Such an organisation does not 
need to be admitted, as its right to membership is automatic.  
 

Unrealised Gains/Losses 
 The increase or decrease in the market value of investments held by the Pension 

Fund since the date of their purchase. Note: values throughout these accounts 
are presented rounded to whole numbers. Totals in supporting tables and notes 
may not appear to cast, cross-cast, or exactly match to the core statements or 
other tables due to rounding differences.  

 
Strain on Funds 

When an employee retires early and is immediately paid a pension, without 
actuarial reduction, the lost contribution income and interest cost arising from the 
associated earlier increased cash flow is referred to as pension strain cost. The 
pension strain cost is determined by actuarial calculation. 

 
Wales Pension Partnership (WPP) 

The WPP was established in 2017. The WPP is a collaboration of the eight LGPS 

funds (Constituent Authorities) covering the whole of Wales and is one of eight 

national Local Government Pension pools. 

 
 

Tudalen 76



 

 

1 
 

Appendix 2 

 
 
 
 
Date/Dyddiad:   

23rd November 2022 
 
Please ask for/Gofynnwch am:   

Barrie Davies 
(01443) 424026 

 
Auditor General for Wales 
24 Cathedral Road 
Cardiff 
CF11 9LJ 
 
 
Dear Adrian,  
 
Representations regarding the 2021/22 Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund 
Financial Statements 
 
This letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of the 
Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund (the Pension Fund) for the year ended 31st March 
2022 for the purpose of expressing an opinion on their truth and fairness and their 
proper preparation. 

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made enquiries as we 
consider sufficient, we can make the following representations to you. 

 

Management Representations 

Responsibilities: 

We have fulfilled our responsibilities for: 

• the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with legislative 
requirements and CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting; in 
particular the financial statements give a true and fair view in accordance 
therewith:  

• the design, implementation, maintenance and review of internal control to 
prevent and detect fraud and error. 

 

Tudalen 77



 

 

2 
 

Information Provided: 

We have provided you with: 

• Full access to: 

o all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of 
the financial statements such as books of account and supporting 
documentation, minutes of meetings and other matters; 

o additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of 
the audit; and 

o unrestricted access to staff from whom you determined it necessary to 
obtain audit evidence. 

• the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be 
materially misstated as a result of fraud; 

• our knowledge of fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware of and that affects 
Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund and involves: 

o management; 

o employees who have significant roles in internal control; or 

o others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial 
statements. 

• our knowledge of any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the 
financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, regulators 
or others; 

• our knowledge of all known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-
compliance with laws and regulations whose effects should be considered when 
preparing the financial statements; and 

• the identity of all related parties and all the related party relationships and 
transactions of which we are aware.  

 

Financial Statement representations: 

All transactions, assets and liabilities have been recorded in the accounting records 
and are reflected in the financial statements. 

The methods, the data and the significant assumptions used in making accounting 
estimates, and their related disclosures are appropriate to achieve recognition, 
measurement or disclosure that is reasonable in the context of the applicable financial 
reporting framework. 

Related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for 
and disclosed. 

All events occurring subsequent to the reporting date which require adjustment or 
disclosure have been adjusted for or disclosed. 

All known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects should be considered 
when preparing the financial statements have been disclosed to the auditor and 
accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the applicable financial reporting 
framework.  
 

Tudalen 78



 

 

3 
 

The financial statements are free of material misstatements, including omissions.  

 

Representations by those charged with governance being Rhondda 
Cynon Taf County Borough Council as administering authority for 
the Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund 

We acknowledge that the representations made by management, above, have been 
discussed with us. 

We acknowledge our responsibility for the preparation of true and fair financial 
statements in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework. The 
financial statements were approved by the Members of Rhondda Cynon Taf County 
Borough Council on 23rd November 2022. 

We confirm that we have taken all the steps that we ought to have taken in order to 
make ourselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that it has 
been communicated to you. We confirm that, as far as we are aware, there is no 
relevant audit information of which you are unaware. 
 
 

Signed by 
 
 
 
 

Director of Finance & Digital Services       Leading Member 
(S.151 Officer)  
 
 

Date      Date 

 

Tudalen 79



 

 

4 
 

Appendix A 

Matters in relation to fraud 

International Standard for Auditing (UK and Ireland) 240 covers auditors responsibilities relating to fraud in an audit of financial statements. 

The primary responsibility to prevent and detect fraud rests with both management and ‘those charged with governance’, which for the 

Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund  is Full Council. Management, with the oversight of those charged with governance, should ensure there is a 

strong emphasis on fraud prevention and deterrence and create a culture of honest and ethical behaviour, reinforced by active oversight by 

those charged with governance. 

As external auditors, we are responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement 

due to fraud or error. We are required to maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit, considering the potential for management 

override of controls. 

What are we required to do? 

As part of our risk assessment procedures we are required to consider the risks of material misstatement due to fraud. This includes 

understanding the arrangements management has put in place in respect of fraud risks. The ISA views fraud as either: 

• the intentional misappropriation of assets (cash, property, etc); or 

• the intentional manipulation or misstatement of the financial statements. 

We also need to understand how those charged with governance exercises oversight of management’s processes. We are also required to 

make enquiries of both management and those charged with governance as to their knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud, for 

identifying and responding to the risks of fraud and the internal controls established to mitigate them. 

 

 

T
udalen 80



 

 

5 
 

Enquiries of management - in relation to fraud 

Question 2021-22 Response 

1. What is management’s 

assessment of the risk 

that the financial 

statements may be 

materially misstated 

due to fraud and what 

are the principal 

reasons? 

As “Scheme Manager” for the Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund, the controls applied in Rhondda Cynon Taf CBC also 
apply to the administration of the Pension Fund. 

Good governance flows from a shared ethos and culture, as well as from systems and structures. The Council expects 
all representatives (i.e. Members and Officers) to conduct their duties with the highest levels of honesty and integrity. 

 

Policies underpin the culture in place and the Regional Internal Audit Shared Service test compliance with relevant 
Policies linked to the core financial systems (in line with the approved Annual Audit Plan). 

 
To ensure a consistent approach to working practices and processes, all officers are subject to the Council’s terms and 
conditions of employment. A comprehensive suite of information such as policies and procedures are available for 
officers on “The Source” such as: 
 

• Financial Procedure Rules 

• Contract Procedure Rules 

• Human Resources policies 

• Anti-Fraud, Bribery & Corruption Strategy 

• Whistleblowing Policy 

• Gifts and Hospitality Policy. 
 
New employees attend a virtual corporate induction and an induction checklist encompasses key policies and 
procedures. 
 

All Members receive Code of Conduct training and newly elected Member and refresher training is available annually. 

Code of conduct training is also provided to co-opted Members.  The following codes and protocols are included as part 

of the member induction programme and provided on a one to one basis if requested by a Member via the Council 

Business Unit. 
 
Codes and Protocols 

• Members’ Code of Conduct 

• Protocol Standard of Conduct to be followed by Members 

• Officers’ Code of Conduct 

• Protocol for Member/Officer Relations 

T
udalen 81



 

 

6 
 

Enquiries of management - in relation to fraud 

Question 2021-22 Response 

 
Where Members and/or Officers do not undertake their duties in accordance with the expected standards then 
governance arrangements are in place within the Council to manage this process in an equitable, fair and transparent 
manner. 
 

Taking all of the above into account, our assessment of the risk of fraud arising and having a material impact on the 
financial statements is considered to be low. 

 

2. What processes are 

employed to identify 

and respond to the 

risks of fraud more 

generally and specific 

risks of misstatement 

in the financial 

statements? 

The Council has a number of governance arrangements in place that help in the prevention and detection of fraudulent 
and/or improper activities. These include: 

• Financial & Contract Procedure Rules 

• Systems of Internal Control 

• Recruitment Policies 

• Whistleblowing Policy  

• Local procedures within departments, for example, authorisation arrangements and quality assurance processes 
(a number of which were undertaken remotely during 2021/22 due to revised working arrangements as a result of the 
pandemic)  

• An independent Internal Audit Service (the ‘scopes’ for specific audit assignments included in the 2021/22 Audit 
Plan took account of revised working arrangements / potential risks as a result of the pandemic).  

• An independent Corporate Fraud Team 

• Combining with Others to Prevent and Fight Fraud, for example, Participation in the National Fraud Initiative 
 
The Anti-Fraud, Bribery & Corruption Strategy provides a clear path for raising concerns and facilitating ‘tip-offs’, and 
the fraud response arrangements outlined enables such information or allegations to be properly dealt with and reported.  
The Council's Whistleblowing Policy also gives advice on how to raise a concern, as well as providing information on 
the safeguards and support that are available to those who raise concerns. 

Given the governance arrangements in place, management can give assurance that the risk of material misstatement 
is low.  

  

T
udalen 82



 

 

7 
 

Enquiries of management - in relation to fraud 

Question 2021-22 Response 

3. What arrangements 

are in place to report 

fraud issues and risks 

to the Audit 

Committee? 

Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council is resolute in its determination to maintain its reputation as a Council that 
will not tolerate fraud, bribery, corruption or abuse of position for personal gain, wherever it may be found in any area of 
Council activity. 
 
Arrangements in place to report fraud issues 
Whistleblowing 

An updated Whistleblowing Policy and Procedure for Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council was reported to and 

approved by the Council’s Audit Committee at its meeting held on 26th April 2021 and staff awareness was undertaken 

via a Council wide email to employees on 9th March 2022 and whistle-blowing was part of staff induction arrangements.  

The purpose of the Policy is to provide a means by which complaints of malpractice or wrongdoing can be raised by 
those who feel that other avenues for raising such issues are inappropriate. The Policy confirms that so far as possible, 
those raising concerns under the Policy will be treated confidentially. 
 
Workers are encouraged to report any concerns they have via the Council’s Whistleblowing webpage “Get Involved”.  
 
 
Anti-Fraud, Bribery & Corruption Strategy 
The purpose of the Strategy is to communicate the Council’s main principles for countering fraud, bribery and corruption. 
It sets out the: 

• Council’s zero tolerance approach against fraud, bribery & corruption; 

• Reporting avenues for suspected irregularities; 

• Resources that are in place to support a counter fraud, bribery & corruption culture; and 

• Governance arrangements in respect of reporting to the Governance and Audit Committee. 
In the Council’s Report It section of the website, instructions for those who wish to raise anti-fraud, bribery or corruption 
concerns are provided along with the means to complete an on-line form. 
 
Arrangements in place to report to the Governance and Audit Committee: 

 

Anti-fraud, Bribery and Corruption Strategy updates were reported to the Governance and Audit Committee during the 

year (a mid-year update on 6th December 2021 and a year-end update including a proposed work programme for 

2022/23 on 23rd March 2022).  

 

T
udalen 83

https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=149&MId=50001626&Ver=4&LLL=0
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/GetInvolved/Whistleblowing/Whistleblowing.aspx
http://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Contactus/Reportit.aspx
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=149&MId=50003687&Ver=4&LLL=0
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=149&MId=50003689&Ver=4&LLL=0


 

 

8 
 

Enquiries of management - in relation to fraud 

Question 2021-22 Response 

The overall conclusion set out in the March 2022 report, based on the work undertaken during the year, was that the 
Council has taken necessary preventative steps to raise awareness around vigilance and appropriate sharing of 
intelligence across the anti-fraud network. This report was endorsed by the Governance and Audit Committee. 

The 23rd March 2022  Governance and Audit Committee meeting also considered the Whistleblowing Annual Report 

2021/22 and concluded that the Whistleblowing Policy and Procedure continues to be fit for purpose and that the 

Council’s whistleblowing arrangements are appropriate.  

 

The arrangements in place demonstrate the Council’s commitment to promoting the highest standards of service and 

ensuring that workers know how they can bring matters of alleged wrongdoing to the attention of the Council.   

 
Related information is also included under question 5 ‘Enquiries of management - in relation to fraud’. 
 
The Pension Fund has its own governance structure which includes the Council’s Governance and Audit Committee 
and also details that the Pensions Board may report directly to the Pensions Regulator in the event of non compliance 
with the Code of Practice or in the event of breaches. The Annual Review of the Fund’s Governance and Strategy 

documents which fall within the remit of the Pension Fund Committee, as detailed in the terms of reference, 
were agreed by the  Pension Fund Committee on 22nd March 2021.  

 
 

4. How has management 

communicated 

expectations of ethical 

governance and 

standards of conduct 

and behaviour to all 

relevant parties, and 

when? 

Elected Councillors 
All elected Councillors are provided with an induction (when they start their role as a Councillor) and an on-going 
programme of support is in place that includes an overview of the Council’s Code of Conduct. 
 
Every elected Councillor has signed up to his/her individual Role Description, a copy of which is retained by the Council’s 
Democratic Services division. 
 
The Council’s Scrutiny Committee meeting minutes and the Pension Fund Committee meeting minutes were examined 
to determine whether proceedings were conducted in line with the Council’s Code of Conduct. Declarations of interest 
were sought and declarations were made by elected Councillors, as a standard agenda item, where appropriate.  
 
On 15th November 2021 Cabinet received the report on the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales – Annual Report 
and Letter 2020/21. In addition, a Standards Committee was in place during 2021/22 and received a summary of 
complaints against Members  submitted to the Ombudsman on 19th November 2021.  

T
udalen 84

https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s34636/Report.pdf?LLL=0
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s25639/Report.pdf?LLL=0
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/g50003678/Printed%20minutes%2015th-Nov-2021%2010.00%20Cabinet.pdf?T=1&LLL=0
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/g50003691/Printed%20minutes%2019th-Nov-2021%2010.00%20Standards%20Committee.pdf?T=1&LLL=0
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/g50003691/Printed%20minutes%2019th-Nov-2021%2010.00%20Standards%20Committee.pdf?T=1&LLL=0


 

 

9 
 

Enquiries of management - in relation to fraud 

Question 2021-22 Response 

 

Pensions Board 

The Pensions Board has its own Terms of Reference which details the expectation that Board members comply with 

the Seven Principles of Public Life and also provides information on the legal duty of members to disclose conflicts of 

interest. 

Pensions Board Terms of Reference 
 
Council Employees 
The Council has a number of recruitment and selection Policies in place that help to ensure that new recruits have the 
integrity and ethical values of the organisation and also the competencies to undertake the duties required of them. 
 
Employees have contracts of employment and competency based job descriptions which set out grade, roles and 
responsibilities. The Human Resources Service oversees terms and conditions of employment, and the Council have a 
suite of policies and procedures that are available for officers to access. 
 
Each new recruit is provided with a ‘Basic Rules – A Guide for Employees’ booklet, via The Source, that gives each 
employee information in relation to (amongst other things) expected behaviour, use of social media, appearance and 
attendance. The expectations of each employee are set out from the outset. 
 
The Council describes what excellent behaviour looks like for each type of job, for example, ‘always treat people with 
respect’, and this information is used to test candidates suitability for jobs at interview and is used to inform discussions 
managers have with their staff as part of their development. 
 

5. Are you aware of any 

instances of actual, 

suspected or alleged 

fraud within the council 

since 1 April 2021? 

To support transparency and openness, the Council’s arrangements during 2021/22 included:  
 
Whistle-blowing arrangements  
Since April 2017 the Council is required to report annually on whistle-blowing disclosures. The Regulation required the 
Council to publish the annual report on its website or by other means appropriate for bringing the report to the attention 
of the public. For Rhondda Cynon Taf, this requirement was met for the 2021/22 financial year via an Annual Report to 
the Governance and Audit Committee on 23rd March 2022.   
 
Anti-fraud, Bribery & Corruption arrangements  
 

T
udalen 85

http://www.rctpensions.org.uk/En/RelatedDocuments/GovernanceandInvestments/TermsOfReferenceForThePensionBoardNovember2016.pdf
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/GetInvolved/Whistleblowing/Whistleblowing.aspx
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/GetInvolved/FraudInvestigation/FraudInvestigation.aspx


 

 

10 
 

Enquiries of management - in relation to fraud 

Question 2021-22 Response 

As set out for question 3 above, the Anti-Fraud Annual Report for 2021/22 was reported to the Governance and Audit 
Committee on 23rd March 2022 (and an Anti-Fraud, Bribery and Corruption mid-year update was reported to the 
Governance and Audit Committee on 6th December 2021). The year-end update included information on (amongst 
other things): communication arrangements to help drive proactive preventative and awareness raising measures; a 
targeted fraud awareness training plan; coordination and recording of fraud referrals; engagement with services within 
the Council (for example, the Cyber Security Team) and other external bodies to counter fraudulent activities and 
undertake data matching activities; and financial probity work around the award of Covid-19 business payments..  
 
A targeted ‘Fraud Awareness – Manager Briefing’ was designed and circulated to all service area managers during 
the year highlighting proactive measures and support, together with the appropriate reporting lines. 
 

6. Are you aware of any 

fraud within the council 

since 1 April 2021? 

Please refer to the response to question 5, above. 

 

7. Are you aware of any 

instances of actual, 

suspected or alleged 

fraud within the council 

since 1 April 2021? 

Please refer to the response to question 5, above. 

 

T
udalen 86

https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=149&MId=50003689&Ver=4&LLL=0
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=149&MId=50003687&Ver=4&LLL=0


 

 

11 
 

Enquiries of those charged with governance – in relation to fraud 

Question 2021-22 Response 

1. How does the Full 

Council, exercise 

oversight of 

management's 

processes for identifying 

and responding to the 

risks of fraud within the 

audited body and the 

internal control that 

management has 

established to mitigate 

those risks? 

Full Council has ensured that the Governance & Audit Committee’s Terms of Reference are comprehensive and 

compliant with the Local Government Measure 2011 and Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021 (as 

reported to  Audit Committee (26/4/21) and full Council (26/5/21). 
 
The Governance and Audit Committee has a detailed work plan for each Municipal Year that helps ensure the delivery 
of its Terms of Reference. The  23/3/22  Governance and Audit Committee also considered an Annual Report setting 
out the work undertaken by the Committee during the year (including consideration of Fraud related reports) in line with 
its Terms of Reference and a self-assessment  against the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 
(CIPFA) publication ‘Audit Committees - Practical Guidance for Local Authorities & Police 2018 Edition. 
 
The Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund Accounts are reported to full Council, alongside the external auditor’s report, 
for consideration and if appropriate, approval.  
 

Audit Wales reports its Annual Audit Summary Report to full Council setting out, amongst other things, the results of 

its work undertaken within the Authority in the previous financial year. The most recent being reported 19 January 2022. 

Further to review by Council, this report was reviewed by the Governance and Audit Committee (23/3/22) – as part of 

this report, a detailed update was provided on the progress being made by the Council to implement agreed proposals 

for improvement reported by Audit Wales. 

 

2. Are you aware of any 
instances of actual, 
suspected or alleged 
fraud with the audited 
body since 1 April 2021 

 

Please refer to response within “Enquiries of Management” section, Question 5 

 

T
udalen 87

https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s26118/Report.pdf?LLL=0
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s28564/Report.pdf?LLL=0
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/AuditCommittee/2019/07/15/Reports/Item4RCTDRAFTWORKPLAN201920.pdf
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s34637/Report.pdf?LLL=0
https://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/EN/Council/CouncillorsCommitteesandMeetings/Meetings/Council/2019/09/18/Reports/Item6WalesAuditOfficeAnnualImprovementAudit.pdf
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s34639/Report.pdf?LLL=0


 

 

12 
 

Appendix 2 

Matters in relation to laws and regulations 

International Standard for Auditing (UK and Ireland) 250 covers auditors responsibilities to consider the impact of laws and regulations in an 

audit of financial statements. 

Management, with the oversight of those charged with governance (Full Council), is responsible for ensuring that the Council’s operations are 

conducted in accordance with laws and regulations, including compliance with those that determine the reported amounts and disclosures in 

the financial statements. 

As external auditors, we are responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement 

due to fraud or error, taking into account the appropriate legal and regulatory framework. The ISA distinguishes two different categories of laws 

and regulations: 

• laws and regulations that have a direct effect on determining material amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; 

• other laws and regulations where compliance may be fundamental to the continuance of operations, or to avoid material penalties. 

What are we required to do? 

As part of our risk assessment procedures we are required to make inquiries of management and the Full Council as to whether the Council is 

in compliance with relevant laws and regulations. Where we become aware of information of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance we 

need to gain an understanding of the non-compliance and the possible effect on the financial statements. 

  

T
udalen 88



 

 

13 
 

Enquiries of management – in relation to laws and regulations 

Question 2021-22 Response 

1. How have you gained assurance 

that all relevant laws and 

regulations have been complied 

with? 

The accounts are prepared in accordance with the Accounts & Audit Regulations and Pensions Statement of 
Recommended Practice. 
 
In addition, the Pension Fund has undertaken an assessment of its compliance with the Pensions Regulator 
Code of Practice. 

 

2. Have there been any instances of 

non-compliance or suspected 

non-compliance with relevant laws 

and regulations since 1 April 

2021, or earlier with an ongoing 

impact on the 2021-22 financial 

statements? 

There are no instances of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations. Full Council receives assurance 
on this from the appointed External Auditor. 

3. Are there any potential litigations 

or claims that would affect the 

financial statements? 

Any potential litigations and/or claims are accounted for in accordance with the Code of Practice and where 

appropriate, disclosed in the letter of representation. 

4. Have there been any reports from 

other regulatory bodies, such as 

HM Revenues and Customs which 

indicate non-compliance? 

No. 

5. Are you aware of any non-

compliance with laws and 

regulations within the council 

since 1 April 2021? 

No. 

 

  

T
udalen 89



 

 

14 
 

Enquiries of those charged with governance – in relation to laws and regulations 

Question 2021-22 Response 

1. How does the Full 

Council, in its role as 

those charged with 

governance, obtain 

assurance that all 

relevant laws and 

regulations have been 

complied with? 

Full Council appoints Governance and Audit Committee and sets its Terms of Reference. 
 
Full Council ratifies the appointment of the Section 151 Officer and the Council’s Monitoring Officer, whose roles are 

defined by statute and referenced within the Constitution.  
 
Full Council receives assurance from the appointed External Auditor. 

 

The Annual Review of the Fund’s Governance and Strategy documents which fall within the remit of the 
Pension Fund Committee, as detailed in the terms of reference, were agreed by the  Pension Fund 
Committee on 22nd March 2021.  

2. Are you aware of any 

instances of non-

compliance with relevant 

laws and regulations? 

There are no instances of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations. Full Council receives assurance on 
this from the appointed External Auditor. 

 

 

 

  

T
udalen 90

https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s25639/Report.pdf?LLL=0


 

 

15 
 

Appendix 3 

Matters in relation to related parties 

International Standard for Auditing (UK and Ireland) 550 covers auditors responsibilities relating to related party relationships and transactions. 

The nature of related party relationships and transactions may, in some circumstances, give rise to higher risks of material misstatement of the 

financial statements than transactions with unrelated parties.  

Because related parties are not independent of each other, many financial reporting frameworks establish specific accounting and disclosure 

requirements for related party relationships, transactions and balances to enable users of the financial statements to understand their nature 

and actual or potential effects on the financial statements. An understanding of the entity's related party relationships and transactions is 

relevant to the auditor's evaluation of whether one or more fraud risk factors are present as required by ISA (UK and Ireland) 240, because 

fraud may be more easily committed through related parties. 

What are we required to do? 

As part of our risk assessment procedures, we are required to perform audit procedures to identify, assess and respond to the risks of material 

misstatement arising from the entity's failure to appropriately account for or disclose related party relationships, transactions or balances in 

accordance with the requirements of the framework. 

  

T
udalen 91



 

 

16 
 

Enquiries of management – in relation to related parties 

Question 2021-22 Response 

1. Confirm that you have 
disclosed to the auditor: 

• the identity of any related 

parties, including changes 

from the prior period; 

• the nature of the 

relationships with these 

related parties; 

• details of any transactions 

with these related parties 

entered into during the 

period, including the type 

and purpose of the 

transactions. 

 

Related party transactions are disclosed within the notes to the statement of accounts in accordance with the Code 

of Practice on Local Authority Accounting. 
 

2. What controls are in place 
to identify, authorise, 
approve, account for and 
disclose related party 
transactions and 
relationships? 

Governance arrangements are in place to ensure that a Register of Members Interests is in place and also that 
Declarations of Interest at each committee are asked for as a standard agenda item. 
 
Within the Annual Statement of Accounts of the Pension Fund, there is a requirement for the disclosure of “Related 
Party Transactions”. This relates to payments made to, or income received from, any organisation in which a Member 
or Chief Officer (who sits on the Senior Leadership Team) of the Council has an interest, financial or otherwise. 
 
Independent checks are also undertaken by finance officers against publicly available national databases to minimise 
the risk of non-disclosure. 
 
Additional controls are in place to ensure records of related parties are captured prior to a Member or officer of the 
Senior Leadership team leaving the local authority. 
 
Further additional Controls in place include: 
• Gifts & Hospitality Policy 
• Contract Procedure Rules 
• The Anti-Fraud, Bribery & Corruption Strategy 

 

  

T
udalen 92



 

 

17 
 

Enquiries of the those charged with governance – in relation to related parties 

Question 2021-22 Response 

1. How does the Council, in 
its role as those charged 
with governance, exercise 
oversight of 
management's processes 
to identify, authorise, 
approve, account for and 
disclose related party 
transactions and 
relationships? 

Governance arrangements are in place to ensure that a Register of Members Interests is in place and also that 
Declarations of Interest at each committee are asked for as a standard agenda item. 
 
Within the Annual Statement of Accounts of the Pension Fund, there is a requirement for the disclosure of “Related 
Party Transactions”. This relates to payments made to, or income received from, any organisation in which a Member 

or Chief Officer (who sits on the Senior Leadership Team) of the Council has an interest, financial or otherwise. 
 
Additional Controls in place include: 

• Gifts & Hospitality Policy 

• Contract Procedure Rules 

The Anti-Fraud, Bribery & Corruption Strategy. 

 

 

 

T
udalen 93



tudalen w
ag



 
 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2022/23 
 

COUNCIL 
 

23rd November 2022 
 

2022/23 MID YEAR TREASURY MANAGEMENT STEWARDSHIP REPORT 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND DIGITAL SERVICES : Barrie 
Davies (01443) 424026 

 
 
 

1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 

1.1 The CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management requires a Mid Year 
Review to be presented to Council. This report provides Members with 
information on:- 

 

• The Council’s Treasury Management activity during the first six months 
of 2022/23; and 

• Prudential and Treasury Indicators for the same period. 
 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 It is recommended that Members  note the content of this report. 
 
 
3.0 REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 To report to Council the Treasury Management Mid-Year Review in line with 

the requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management 
and the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities. 

 
 
 

Tudalen 95

Agendwm 7



4.0 INTRODUCTION  
 
 
4.1 The Treasury Management function operates within the Treasury 

Management Strategy and Capital Strategy, both approved by Council on 
the 9th March 2022. 
             

4.2 Treasury Management is defined as: 
“The management of the organisation’s borrowing, investments and cash 
flows, its banking, money market and capital market transactions; the 
effective control of the risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit 
of optimum performance consistent with those risks.”  
 

4.3 The Council sets a balanced budget to ensure that all planned expenditure 
is financed by various sources of income / reserves. Treasury Management 
is concerned with monitoring the cash flows of such income and expenditure 
and planning investments and borrowing prudently. 
 

4.4 This report includes the following areas of treasury activity during the first six 
months of 2022/23: 

 

• Economic background; 

• Borrowing activity and results; 

• Estimated and actual treasury position, treasury management  and 
prudential indicators; 

• Investments; 

• Treasury management advisors; 

• Training; 

• Minimum Revenue Provision; and 

• Sustainable Communities for Learning. 
 

 
5.0      ECONOMIC BACKGROUND 
 
5.1 General Economic Background 
 
5.2 The United Kingdom economic backdrop during April to September 2022 

has continued to be characterised by high oil, gas and commodity prices, 

primarily due to the conflict in Ukraine, and is driving high levels of inflation, 

supply chain pressures and placing significant strain on household budgets 

through the on-going cost of living crisis. The economic climate is also 

impacting globally, through rising inflation levels, and the outlook for both  

United Kingdom and world growth remains weak.  

5.3 GDP growth increased by 0.8% for the quarter ending 30th June 2022 and 
by 0.2% for the quarter ending 30th September 2022, driven by household 
and government spending, and year-on-year GDP growth to the 30th 
September 2022 was 8.7%. In the 3 months June to August 2022, the 

Tudalen 96



unemployment rate fell to 3.5% (3.8% March to May 2022) and although 
wage growth picked up it continued to be outstripped by inflation.  

 
5.4  The Consumer Prices Index inflation increased by 10.1% over the course of 

the previous 12 months to September 2022, up from 9.9% in August and 7% 
in March. From April 2020, the beginning of the first Covid 19 lockdown, until 
March 2021, the annual rate was less than 1.2%.  

 
5.5 The Council’s investment income is subject to changes in short term interest 

rates. The level of the Bank Base Rate or ‘Bank Rate’ is one of the main 

determinants of the rate of interest the Council receives on its short-term 

investments. The Bank Rate has changed as follows for the year to date: 

  
 

% Increase 
Interest 

Rate 

May 22 0.25% 1.00% 

June 22 0.25% 1.25% 

August 22 0.50% 1.75% 

September 22 0.50% 2.25% 

November 22 0.75% 3.00% 

 

The Bank of England Monetary Policy Committee confirmed it will take the 

actions necessary to return inflation to the 2% target sustainably in the 

medium term, in line with its remit. 

 
5.6 The majority of the Council’s borrowing is from the PWLB (Public Works 

Loans Board). Long-term borrowing rates are influenced by gilt yields and 
these have risen sharply due to energy price caps and international energy 
markets priced in dollars. Further rises are expected in the short term due to 
lower confidence in the UK fiscal policy, higher inflation expectations and 
asset sales by the Bank of England. Over the longer term, gilt yields are 
forecast to fall slightly in the next 2-3 years.  

 
5.7 PWLB maturity rates (certainty rate) during the first half of the financial year 

were as follows: 
 

 5 years 10 years 20 years 50 years 

Average 2.93% 3.16% 3.47% 3.17% 

Highest 5.43% 5.36% 5.75% 5.51% 

Lowest 2.21% 2.38% 2.55% 2.25% 

  
5.8 Estimates of future rates are as follows: 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 97



 
 

Base 
Rate 

PWLB Maturity Rates 

  5 years 10 years 20 years 50 years 

2022/23 
(current as at 7th 

Nov 2022) 
3.00% 4.16% 4.26% 4.68% 4.04% 

31/03/23 4.00% 4.70% 4.55% 4.80% 4.20% 

31/03/24 4.25% 4.60% 4.50% 4.70% 4.10% 

  
  

6.0    BORROWING ACTIVITY AND RESULTS  
 
6.1 The borrowing strategy for 2022/23, approved by Council in March 2022, 

reported that the Director of Finance and Digital Services, as Section 151 
Officer (or in his absence the Deputy Section 151 Officer), under delegated 
powers, will take the most appropriate form of borrowing depending upon 
the prevailing interest rates at the time, and taking into account advice 
provided by our advisors.  

 
6.2 In March, the borrowing requirement was estimated to be £18.4m based on 

the Capital Programme at that time. The borrowing requirement has  
increased for 2022/23 mainly due to the addition of schemes under the 
Sustainable Communities for Learning programme, and is now £24.3m as 
at 30th September 2022. Details of this funding is provided in section 16. 

 
6.3     It was also reported that the Council would monitor prevailing PWLB rates 

for any opportunities to reschedule debt to generate savings. I can report 
that to the 30th September this financial year, the Council has not had a 
viable option to reschedule debt. Affordability and the cost of carry remained 
important influences on the Council’s borrowing strategy. No short-term or 
long-term borrowing was taken during the first half of 2022/23. 

 
6.4  In line with the above strategy, this Council has not borrowed in advance of 

need during the first 6 months of the year and has no current intention to 
borrow in advance during the remainder of 2022/23.  

 
6.5 No variance is being reported for net capital charges which have a budget 

for 2022/23 of £21.308m.   
 
 
7.0    CERTAINTY RATE 
 
7.1 The “certainty rate”, whereby local authorities are able to access borrowing 

at 0.2% below published PWLB rates is available from HM Treasury again 
for this year. Authorities were required to provide an indication of their 
potential borrowing requirements for the next 3 years. This Council provided 
such information to HM Treasury and will continue to be able to access the 
discounted rate up to 31st March 2023.  

 
 

Tudalen 98



8.0 ESTIMATED AND ACTUAL TREASURY POSITION AND PRUDENTIAL    
AND TREASURY MANAGEMENT INDICATORS 

 
8.1  During the six months to 30th September 2022, the Council operated within 

its prudential limits set out in the Prudential Code report approved by Council 
in March 2022. Details of limits and actual performance are as follows: 

 
8.2 Capital Expenditure and the Capital Financing Requirement 

 
8.2.1 The Capital Expenditure plans of the Council are primarily financed by 

capital receipts and capital grants. The remaining element which cannot be 
immediately financed from other resources will constitute our borrowing 
requirement. The estimated level of available capital resources is provided 
in summary as the Capital Expenditure Indicator below. 

 

Indicator: Capital Expenditure  

 2022/23 
Original 

Estimate 
£M 

2022/23 
Projected 

Outturn 
£M 

2023/24 
Revised 

Estimate 
£M 

2024/25 
Revised 

Estimate 
£M 

Supported spend 82.498 154.672 60.506 25.484 

Unsupported spend 11.502 17.448 9.112 8.692 

Total spend 94.000 172.120 69.618 34.176 

  Financed by:- 

Borrowing 18.369 24.315 15.979 15.559 

Other Capital 
Resources (Grants, 
Capital Receipts) 

75.631 147.805 53.639 18.617 

 
8.2.2 The Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) represents the Council’s 

underlying need to borrow for capital purposes. The CFR is capital 
expenditure that has not yet been paid for from either revenue or capital 
resources. 

 
8.2.3 The Council’s expectation for the CFR for the next three years is shown 

below.  

   Indicator: Capital Financing Requirement (CFR)   

 2022/23 
31/03/23 
Original 

Estimate 
£M 

31/03/23 
Projected 

Outturn 
 

£M 

2023/24 
31/03/24 
Revised 

Estimate 
£M 

2024/25 
31/03/25 
Revised 

Estimate 
£M 

CFR  509.293 511.964 512.461 513.381 

Net movement in CFR   0.497 0.920 

      
 
8.2.4 The expected external debt for each year is as detailed below. 

Tudalen 99



 
 

 

Indicator: External Debt 

 
8.2.5 Other Long Term Liabilities represents the Council’s obligation under its 

finance leases.  

 

9.0 LIMITS TO BORROWING ACTIVITY 

 
9.1 The first key control over the Council’s activity is to ensure that, over the 

medium term, borrowing will only be for a capital purpose. The Council 
needs to ensure that external borrowing does not exceed the total of the 
capital financing requirement in the preceding year plus the estimate of the 
additional capital financing requirement for the next three financial years. 
This allows some flexibility within a three-year period to deliver an effective 
Treasury Management strategy. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                            
1 The indicators and limits have been updated (for 2022/23) in line with the Council approval of 9th 
March 2022 detailing the funding arrangements for Transport (Rail) Infrastructure works. 
 

2 The indicators as set out in ‘2022/23 Capital Strategy Report Incorporating Prudential Indicators’ 
approved by Council on 9th March 2022, included figures for future lease liabilities, as required by 
the prevailing Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting at that time. Since that point, CIPFA 
has delayed the implementation of proposals until April 2024. 
 

 30/09/22 
Actuals 

£M 

2022/23 
31/03/23 
 Original 
Estimate 

£M1 

2022/23 
31/03/23 
Revised 

Estimate 
£M 

2023/24 
31/03/24 
Revised 

Estimate 
£M 

2024/25 
31/03/25
Revised 

Estimate 
£M 

Borrowing 381.451 440.242 411.242 378.423 427.004 

Other long 
term 
liabilities2 

0.453 2.458 0.582 0.581 1.829 

Total External 
Debt 

381.904 442.700 411.824 379.004 428.833 

Tudalen 100



 

 

Borrowing Activity (Gross Borrowing) 

 

9.2 The Authorised Limit represents the limit beyond which borrowing is 
prohibited, and needs to be set, monitored and revised by Members.  It 
reflects the maximum level of borrowing to fund existing capital 
commitments, which could be afforded in the short term, but is not 
sustainable.  It is the expected maximum borrowing need, with some added 
headroom for unexpected movements.  It is proposed that these limits be 
amended in line with increases to the underlying need to borrow, that is, the 
Capital Financing Requirement. 

 

Indicator: The Authorised Limit  

 2022/23 
30/09/22

Actuals 
£M 

2022/23 
Limit 

 
£M 

2023/24 
Limit 

 
£M 

2024/25 
Limit 

 
£M 

Gross Borrowing  381.451 607.400 525.000 525.000 

Other long term 
liabilities  

0.453 5.000 5.000 5.000 

Authorised Limit 381.904 612.400 530.000 530.000 

 

9.3 The Operational Boundary is based on the probable external debt during the 
course of the year; actual borrowing could vary around this boundary, for 
short times, during the year. It should act as an indicator to ensure the 
Authorised Limit is not breached. 

 

 

 2022/23 
30/09/22 

Actuals 
 

£M 
 

2022/23 
31/03/23 
Original 

Estimate 
£M 

2022/23 
31/03/23 
Revised 

Estimate 
£M 

2023/24 
31/03/24 
Revised 

Estimate 
£M 

 
 

2024/25 
31/03/25 
Revised 

Estimate 
£M 

Gross 
Borrowing (inc. 

Other Long Term 

Liabilities) 

381.904 442.700 411.824 379.004 428.833 

Capital 
Financing 
Requirement 

 509.293 511.964 512.461 513.381 

Tudalen 101



Indicator: The Operational Boundary 

 2022/23 
30/09/22 

Actuals  
£M  

2022/23 
Estimate 

 
£M 

2023/24 
Estimate 

 
£M 

2024/25 
Estimate 

 
£M 

Gross Borrowing 
Limit 

381.451 452.400 370.000 370.000 

Other long term 
liabilities  

0.453 3.000 3.000 3.000 

Operational 
Boundary 

381.904 455.400 373.000 373.000 

 
 
10.0  AFFORDABILITY PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 
 
10.1 Previous sections have covered overall capital and control of borrowing 

indicators, but there is also a requirement to assess the affordability of 
capital investment plans. This provides an indication of the impact of the 
capital investment plans on the overall Council finances.   

 
10.2 The Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream identifies the trend in 

the cost of capital (borrowing costs net of interest and investment income) 
against the "net revenue stream". The net revenue stream for the General 
Fund is the amount collectable from Council Tax payers added to the 
Council's Revenue Support Grant (RSG) and Non Domestic Rates (NDR). 
The key use of this indicator is to compare trends in the ratio of financing 
costs to the net revenue stream, over time. 

 

 Indicator: Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream 

 
 
 

  
10.3 The Ratio of Net Income from Commercial and Service Investments to Net 

Revenue Stream is a new indicator introduced in the 2021 Prudential Code 
update. It identifies the net income from financial and commercial 
investments (other than treasury management investments) and is intended 
to show the financial exposure of the Council to the loss of income. Direct 
costs of the investment may be netted off. 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 2022/23 
Original 

Estimate 

2022/23 
Revised 

Estimate 

2023/24
Revised 

Estimate 

2024/25 
Revised 

Estimate 

General Fund 4.76% 4.57% 4.87% 5.35% 

Tudalen 102



Indicator: Ratio of Net Income from Commercial and Service Investments 
Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream 

 
 
 

  
10.4 A LOBO is a financial instrument called a “Lender’s Option Borrower’s 

Option”. It provides a lower rate of interest for the initial period and a higher 
rate for the rest of its term (reversionary period), albeit that the higher rate 
was comparable with interest rates prevailing at the time the loans were 
taken.  At the end of the initial period and at six monthly intervals, the lender 
has the option to increase the interest rate payable. This provides the 
Council with the option to repay the loan if the terms are not acceptable. No 
banks exercised their option during the six months to September.  

 
10.5 The amount of LOBO debt held in 2022/23 is £31m, 8% of total debt as at 

30th September. Although not a requirement of the Prudential Code, an 
internal limit of LOBO debt is set as follows:  

 
 

 £M % of Debt 
Portfolio 

LOBO Limits 50 20 

  
10.6 The maturity structure indicator sets gross limits to reduce the Council’s 

exposure to large fixed rate sums falling due for refinancing annually. The 
Code of Practice requires LOBO’s to be represented in the maturity structure 
at the next option date, hence the table below demonstrates a high maturity 
within 12 months. 
 
Indicator: Maturity Structure  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
10.7 In order to maximise investment returns there could be opportunities for 

sums to be invested for longer than one year. This would only be undertaken 
with a prudent view of the primary considerations of security and liquidity.  

 2022/23 
Original 

Estimate 

2022/23 
Revised 

Estimate 

2023/24
Revised 

Estimate 

2024/25 
Revised 

Estimate 

General Fund 0.28% 0.30% 0.29% 0.28% 

 2022/23 
Actuals as 

at  
30/09/22 

Upper 
Limit 

Lower 
Limit 

Under 12 months 31% 70% 0% 

12 months to 2 years 3% 70% 0% 

2 years to 5 years 8% 60% 0% 

5 years to 10 years 12% 70% 0% 

10 years to 20 years 4% 90% 0% 

20 years to 30 years 0% 90% 0% 

30 years to 40 years 42% 90% 0% 

40 years to 50 years 0% 90% 0% 

Tudalen 103



11.0  FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS  
 

11.1 The Investment Strategy enables lending to organisations upon which we 
undertake appropriate due diligence and put in place appropriate security 
arrangements. Such loans could result in the Council being able to achieve 
better investment returns at an acceptable level of risk and to secure base 
budget savings over the short to medium term to protect frontline services.  

 
11.2 These investment decisions are classed as “Financial Investments” and are 

subject to S151 officer determination, following appropriate due diligence 
and subject to appropriate and acceptable security arrangements being in 
place as part of the commercial agreement. 

 
11.3 The maximum exposure for this type of investment is set at £25m with a 

maximum maturity limit of 30 years.  
 
11.4 Such transactions will be included in the indicators reported as part of the 

quarterly performance reports and statutory Treasury Management Reports. 
  

 Indicator: Total principal funds invested for periods longer than 1 
year: 
 

  
Limit 

30/09/22 
Actual 

Maximum principal sums invested over 1 
year 

£25m £2.20m 

 
11.5 The £2.20m represents a 25-year loan to Cynon Taf Housing Community 

Group (£2.30m outstanding in total, £0.10m of which to be repaid within 12 
months).   

 
11.6 For measuring the Council’s exposure to interest rate risk, the following table 

shows the revenue impact of a 1% rise or fall in interest rates (based on 
borrowing and investments as at 30th September 2022): 

 
 

Interest Rate Risk  Impact 
£M 

One year revenue impact of a 1% 
rise/fall in interest rates 

0.644 

 
 

12.0 INVESTMENT STRATEGY, ACTIVITY & RESULTS 
 
12.1 The Council manages its investments in-house, investing in line with the 

Council’s approved lender criteria as approved by Council on the 9th  March 
2022.  

  
12.2 Members will recall that following the onset of the unprecedented national 

and international economic crisis in 2008, all of this Council’s cash flows are 

Tudalen 104



currently being invested in the Debt Management Account Deposit Facility 
and other Government backed public sector bodies, in line with the 
aforementioned approved strategy. This strategy ensures we prioritise 
Security (protecting monies invested), then Liquidity (cashflow) and finally 
Yield (return on investment). The order of these “SLY” priorities are detailed 
in Investment Guidance produced by the Welsh Government. 

 
12.3 I have kept this under constant review subsequently with a view to returning 

to market investment activity at an appropriate time.  To date, the Council 
has not returned to market investments. Members will be kept informed of 
any changes as part of the Council’s quarterly performance reports. 

 
12.4 The following table shows the overall result of the investment activities 

undertaken by the Council:    
  

 Interest 
Received 

Average 
Cash 

Balance 

Return on 
Investments 

Benchmark 
Return 

 £M £M % % 

General Balances 0.460 46.556 0.99 1.277 

 
The benchmark for Local Authority internally managed funds is the average 
7-day Sterling Overnight rate (SONIA) rate.   
 

12.5 The Council also holds non-specified investments in Cynon Valley Waste 
Disposal Company Ltd, trading as Amgen Cymru Ltd and Amgen Rhondda 
Ltd. These are shown in the Council’s 2021/22 balance sheet as £3.032m, 
under “Investments in Subsidiaries”. 

 
12.6  The Council also holds non-financial investments.  

 

• Non-financial commercial investment in Ty Dysgu, Cefn Coed 
Business Park, Nantgarw. The building and site have a fair value of 
£3.0m, with an annual rental of £322k.   

• The Council has investments it categorises as non-financial and other 
investments relevant to Council functions. These buildings have a fair 
value of £19.9m, with an annual rental of £1.4m. They relate to 50-53 
Taff St, Pontypridd; Unit 1 Cambrian Industrial Estate, Clydach Vale; 
Rhos Surgery, Mountain Ash; Llys Cadwyn, Pontypridd; Coed Ely 
Units; 103-110 Taff Street, Pontypridd; and 13-17 Sardis Road, 
Pontypridd. 

12.7 Decision making on commercial activities will be regeneration led in line with 
Council’s Constitution, approved strategies and policies and will in all 
instances be with the express approval of the Council’s Section 151 Officer 
and the Director of Legal Services. 

 
 
 
 

Tudalen 105



 
13.0 TREASURY MANAGEMENT ADVISORS 
 
13.1 The Council appointed Arlingclose as its Treasury Management Advisors 

from 1st April 2019 for the 3 year period up to 31st March 2022, with the 
option to extend for up to 2 years. Following a review of the service provision, 
the option to extend for a further two years was agreed. 

 
 
14.0 TRAINING 
 
14.1  Officers regularly attend webinars hosted by Arlingclose which provide an 

overview of the economic environment, investment advice, updates on 
Codes of Practice and technical guidance. A virtual online strategy meeting 
has also been held between Arlingclose and officers in August. Officers 
continue to receive interest rate information, economic data, credit ratings 
and general market environment information on a regular basis. All Elected 
Members were invited to a virtual training event facilitated by Arlingclose on 
7th  September 2022.  

  
 
15.0 MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION (MRP)  
 
15.1 In accordance with legislative requirements applicable to local government 

(Local Government Act 2003), there is a requirement to charge an amount 
to revenue each year in respect of capital expenditure that is funded by 
borrowing. This charge is known as Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) and 
must be a prudent amount in accordance with Welsh Government Statutory 
Guidance. 

 
15.2   The method of charging MRP for Supported Borrowing is a straight line policy 

over 40 years. With regard to finance leases MRP is equivalent to the 
principal value of repayments. With regard to the method of charging MRP 
to Council Fund Balances in respect of Unsupported Borrowing only, the 
method used is dependent upon the type of asset being created as set out 
in the approved MRP Policy statement approved by Council on the 9th March 
2022. 

 
 
16.0 FUNDING OF PROJECTS SUPPORTED BY THE SUSTAINABLE 

COMMUNITIES FOR LEARNING PROGRAMME (FORMERLY, 21ST 
CENTURY SCHOOLS AND COLLEGES PROGRAMME)  

 
16.1  This Council continues to successfully deliver new, improved and modern 

schools to make a significant improvement to the learning environment for 
our young people. 

  
16.2  On the 4th October 2021, Cabinet considered a report which detailed a 

significant increase in the approved Strategic Outline Programme (SOP) for 
Band B of the programme from £167M to £252M. The individual school 

Tudalen 106



projects were reported as part of that update, which are being funded by a 
combination of WG Grant Funding (at 65%) and the WG Mutual Investment 
Model (MIM) Funding (at 81%, subsequently updated to 82.3%). The 
Council is also responsible for funding fit out costs at 35% for the MIM 
projects. The Council’s contributions are funded using prudential borrowing 
and revenue funding respectively.  

 
16.3   The individual schemes continue to evolve through the Welsh Government’s 

five case business model and approval process, with procurement 
processes running alongside to enable the delivery of timetabled on-site 
development.  
 

16.4  Whilst absolute costs are not known until the completion of procurement 
processes and WG approvals, the overall envelope has previously been 
agreed by WG and accordingly the Council’s contributions in line with the 
agreed envelope likewise need to be secured to avoid unnecessary delays 
to the programme.  
 

16.5   The Council’s contributions to the respective funding packages are and will 
continue to be built into the Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan and 
Capital Programme accordingly. On the 6th July via the 2021/22 Annual 
Treasury Management Review report, Council agreed the overall level of 
contribution of £43.2M borrowing to fund the full programme in line with the 
detail set out above and up to and within the overall envelope.  Set against 
this, current borrowing amounts to £30.0M. 
 

 
17.0  EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS AND SOCIO-ECONOMIC 

DUTY 
 
17.1  The report provides an overview of the Council’s Treasury Management 

activities during the first six months of 2022/23 in line with the Treasury 
Management and Capital Strategies approved by Council in March 2022. As 
a result, there are no equality and diversity or socio-economic duty 
implications to report. 

  
 
18.0 WELSH LANGUAGE IMPLICATIONS 
 
18.1  There are no Welsh language implications as a result of the 

recommendations in this report. 
 
 
19.0 CONSULTATION  
 
19.1  Following consideration by Council, this report will be presented to the 

Governance and Audit Committee in line with the laid down code of practice 
“CIPFA Treasury management in the Public Services 2017” and also the 
Terms of Reference for this Committee.  

 

Tudalen 107



 
 
20.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S)  
 
20.1 The financial results / implications of the Council’s Treasury Management 

arrangements during the first six months of 2022/23 have been incorporated 
into quarterly Performance Reports during the year.  

 
 
21.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS OR LEGISLATION CONSIDERED 
 
21.1 The report ensures the Council complies with its legal duty under the Local 

Government Act 2003 and in doing so is in line with the CIPFA Code of 
Practice on Treasury Management and the CIPFA Prudential Code for 
Capital Finance in Local Authorities.  

 
 
22.0 LINKS TO CORPORATE AND NATIONAL PRIORITIES AND THE WELL-

BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS ACT  
 
22.1   This report evidences the progress made in delivering the Council’s 

Corporate Plan 2020-24 – ‘Making a Difference’ in particular through 
supporting the ‘Living Within Our Means’ theme by pursuing optimum 
treasury management performance or return at the same time as managing 
associated risk.  

 
22.2  The report also supports the Well-being of Future Generations Act in 

particular ‘a globally responsible Wales’ through responsible management 
and investment of the Council’s resources.  

 
 

23.0 CONCLUSION 
 
23.1 The 2022/23 financial year continues to be a challenging period for Treasury 

Management and this report highlights for Members the Treasury 
Management activities that have been undertaken between April and 
September 2022.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
Other information:  
Relevant Committee – Governance and Audit Committee 

 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen 108



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 
 

AS AMENDED BY 
 
 

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 
 
 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 

COUNCIL 23rd NOVEMBER 2022  
 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE AND DIGITAL SERVICES 
 

Item: 2022/23 MID YEAR TREASURY MANAGEMENT STEWARDSHIP 
REPORT  

 
 

Background Papers  
 

• 9th March 2022 Council meeting – Reports: 

o Treasury Management Strategy Incorporating Investment Strategy, 

Treasury Management Indicators and Minimum Revenue Provision 

Statement for 2022/23. 

 https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s34286/Report.pdf?LLL=0  

 

o 2022/23 Capital Strategy Report Incorporating Prudential Indicators.  

 https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s34291/Report.pdf?LLL=0  

 

 

 
 

Officer to contact: Barrie Davies (Director of Finance and Digital Services)  
 
 

********************  

Tudalen 109

https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s34286/Report.pdf?LLL=0
https://rctcbc.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s34291/Report.pdf?LLL=0


tudalen wag



CYNIGYDD yn cyflwyno cynnig

PROPOSER moves and presents motion

EILYDD y Cynnig
(Noder - mae'n cael rhoi araith yn hwyrach yn y ddadl - CPR 12.3)

SECONDER of the motion 
(N.B. Can reserve speech until later in debate - CPR 12.3)

Diwygiad i’r cynnig wedi’i gyflwyno?
Amendment(s) to motion tabled?

Eilydd y diwygiad
(Noder – mae'n cael rhoi araith yn

hwyrach yn y ddadl - CPR 12.3
Seconder of the amendment 

(N.B. Can reserve speech until later in
debate - CPR 12.3)

Dadl ar y diwygiad

Debate on the amendment

Dadl ar y cynnig

(Hawl i’r cynigydd ymateb ar
ddiwedd y ddadl cyn i’r
bleidlais gael ei bwrw 

– CPR 12.9(a))

Debate on motion 

(Proposer of motion has right
of reply at end of debate

immediately before vote taken
– CPR 12.9(a))

Pleidlais i'w chymryd ar y cynnig

Vote taken on the motion

Noder – Rhaid i'r Cynigydd ac Eilydd y Cynnig neu'r Diwygiad fod yn bresennol yn y cyfarfod.
Os dydyn nhw ddim yn bresennol, bydd y cynnig neu'r diwygiad yn methu  (CPR 10.6)

NB – The Proposer and Seconder of a motion or an amendment must be in attendance at the meeting. 
If they are not the motion or amendment falls (CPR 10.6)

Ydy
Yes

Nac ydy
No

Cynigydd y diwygiad yn cyflwyno’r
diwygiad (dim hawl i ymateb ar ddiwedd

y ddadl CPR 12.9(c))
Proposer of amendment to motion

presents the amendment (no right of
reply at end of debate – CPR 12.9(c))

Diwygiad yn methu (ailadrodd y 
broses wedi'i nodi uchod ar gyfer 

unrhyw ddiwygiadau eraill)
Amendment falls (repeat above

process for any other amendments)

Diwygiad i'r cynnig wedi’i 
gymeradwyo - hwn bellach yw'r 
cynnig gwreiddiol (CPR 12.6(d))
Amendment to motion carried - 
becomes substantive motion 

(CPR 12.6(d))

Y Maer i ddarllen y cynnig gwreiddiol 

Ailadrodd y broses wedi’i nodi uchod ar gyfer unrhyw ddiwygiadau eraill

Dim rhagor o ddiwygiadau? Pleidlais i’w chymryd ar y cynnig 
gwreiddiol (CPR 12.6(e))

Mayor reads out substantive motion

Repeat above process for any further amendments 

If none, vote taken on the substantive motion (CPR 12.6(e))

Pleidlais i'w chymryd ar y diwygiad

Vote on the amendment 

Hawl i gynigydd y cynnig gwreiddiol
ymateb ar ddiwedd y ddadl ynglŷn â'r 

diwygiad (CPR 12.9(b))
Proposer of the original motion has the

right of reply at close of debate on
amendment (CPR 12.9(b))

Tudalen 111

Agendwm 8



tudalen wag


	Agenda
	2 Cofnodion
	5 Cwestiynau gan yr Aelodau
	RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL
	MEMBERS QUESTIONS ON NOTICE
	REPORT OF THE SERVICE DIRECTOR, DEMOCRATIC SERVICES & COMMUNICATION.
	REPORT OF THE SERVICE DIRECTOR, DEMOCRATIC SERVICES & COMMUNICATION.

	Item:  MEMBERS QUESTIONS ON NOTICE

	Background Papers

	6 CRONFA BENSIWN RHONDDA CYNON TAF 2021/22 – DATGANIAD O GYFRIFON AC ADRODDIAD ARCHWILIO ALLANOL
	Report 2
	Atodiad 1
	Atodiad 2

	7 Adroddiad Canol Blwyddyn Cylch Rheoli’r Trysorlys 2022-23
	8 Rhybudd o Gynnig

